0001173382-25-0000066-K CAE INC 2025021320250213170111170113170113 0 0001173382-25-000006 6-K 4
20241231 20250213 20250213 CAE INC 0001173382 3690 000000000 6-K 34 001-31402 25621380 8585 COTE DE
LIESSE ST-LAURENT A8 HAT 1G6 514-341-6780 8585 COTE DE LIESSE ST-LAURENT A8 H4T 1G6 6-K 1

cae _g3fy25xcoverform6-k.htm 6-K DocumentUNITED STATESSECURITIES AND EXCHANGE
COMMISSIONWashington, DC 20549Form 6-KREPORT OF FOREIGN ISSUER PURSUANT TO RULE 13A-16 OR 15D-16
UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934For the month of: February 2025A A A A Commission File
Number: 1-31402CAE INC.(Translation of registranta€™s name into English)8585 Cote de LiesseSaint-Laurent,
QuebecCanada H4T 1G6(Address of Principal Executive Offices)Indicate by check mark whether the registrant files or
will file annual reports under cover of Form 20-F or Form 40-F:Form 20-FAAAA AAAAAAAA Form 40-F

A A XA A INCORPORATION BY REFERENCEA A A A This report on Form 6-K and the exhibits hereto are specifically
incorporated by reference into the registration statements on Form S-8 (File Nos. 333-97185, 333-155366, 333-213708,
333-267775 and 333-275323), of CAE Inc. SIGNATURESPursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly

Name:A A A A Mark HounsellTitle:A A A A Chief Legal and Compliance Officer, and Corporate SecretaryEXHIBIT
Discussion and AnalysisA A A A EX-99.1 2 cae q3fy25xexl1xpressrelease.htm 6-K Q3FY25 PRESS RELEASE Document
Press ReleaseCAE reports third quarter fiscal 2025 resultsa€¢Revenue of $1,223.4 million vs. $1,094.5 million in prior
yearda€¢Earnings per share (EPS) from continuing operations of $0.53 vs. $0.18 in prior yeara€¢Adjusted EPS(1) of
$0.29 vs. $0.24 in prior yeara€¢Operating income of $262.6 million vs. $121.6 million in prior yeara€¢Adjusted segment
operating income(1) of $190.0 million vs. $145.1 million in prior yeara€¢Free cash flow(1) of record $409.8 million vs.
$190.0 million in prior yeara€¢Adjusted order intake(1) of $2.2 billion for a record $20.3 billion adjusted backlog(1) &€
¢Company also announces changes to its Board of DirectorsMontreal, Canada, FebruaryA 13, 2025 - (NYSE: CAE; TSX:
CAE) - CAE Inc. (CAE or the Company) today reported its financial results for the fiscal third quarter ended

DecemberA 31, 2024.4€ceWe achieved a standout third quarter, generating a record $410 million in free cash flow
while further securing CAE&€™ s future with $2.2 billion in new orders and a record adjusted backlog of $20 billion,a€
said Marc Parent, CAEa€™s President and Chief Executive Officer. &€celn Civil, we increased our stake in SIMCOM and
extended our exclusive long-term training agreement with Flex]Jet and its affiliates, adding over $500 million to our
quarterly adjusted order intake. In Defense, we continued to achieve notable growth and margin improvements through
strong execution and risk reduction, and we completed a second Legacy Contract from adjusted backlog, as planned.
Looking ahead at CAE&€™s fiscal year as a whole, we remain on track to meet our previously stated three-year EPS
target while achieving strong order intake, backlog, and free cash flow. Our success is a testament to CAE&€™ s unique
culture, and I am proud that CAE was recognized as one of Canada's Top 100 Employers for the third consecutive year
and made Forbes' Canada's Best Employers list for 2025.a€Consolidated resultsThird quarter fiscal 2025 revenue was
$1,223.4 million, compared to $1,094.5 million in the third quarter last year. Third quarter EPS from continuing
operations was $0.53 compared to $0.18 last year. Adjusted EPS in the third quarter was $0.29 compared to $0.24 last
year.Operating income this quarter was $262.6 million (21.5% of revenue(1)), which includes a net remeasurement gain
of $72.6 million on CAE&€™s recent SIMCOM Aviation Training (SIMCOM) transaction, marking up its previously held
equity interest in the joint venture to fair value. This compares to $121.6 million (11.1% of revenue) last year. Third
quarter adjusted segment operating income was $190.0 million (15.5% of revenue(1)) compared to $145.1 million
(13.3% of revenue) last year. All financial information is in Canadian dollars and results are presented on a continuing
operations basis, unless otherwise indicated.Summary of consolidated results(amounts in millions, except per share
amounts)Q3-2025Q3-2024Variance %Revenue$1,223.4A $1,094.5A 12A %Operating income

$262.6A $121.6A 116A %Adjusted segment operating income(1)$190.0A $145.1A 31A %As a % of

revenue(1)%15.5A %13.3A Net income attributable to equity holders of the Company$168.6A $56.5A 198A %Earnings
per share (EPS) from continuing operations$0.53A $0.18A 194A %Adjusted EPS(1)$0.29A $0.24A 21A %Adjusted order
intake(1)$2,218.7A $1,273.9A 74A %Adjusted backlog(1)$20,279.7A $11,746.3A 73A %(1) This press release includes
non-IFRS financial measures, non-IFRS ratios, capital management measures and supplementary financial measures.
These measures are not standardized financial measures prescribed under IFRS and therefore should not be confused
with, or used as an alternative for, performance measures calculated according to IFRS. Furthermore, these measures
should not be compared with similarly titled measures provided or used by other issuers. Refer to the Non-IFRS and
other financial measures section of this press release for the definitions and a reconciliation of these measures to the
most directly comparable measure under IFRS.Civil Aviation (Civil)Third quarter Civil revenue was $752.6 million vs.
$622.1 million in the third quarter last year. Operating income was $223.4 million (29.7% of revenue) compared to
$101.0 million (16.2% of revenue) in the same quarter last year. Adjusted segment operating income, which excludes a
net remeasurement gain of $72.6 million on CAE's previously held equity interest in SIMCOM, was $150.8 million
(20.0% of revenue) compared to $124.2 million (20.0% of revenue) in the third quarter last year. During the quarter,
Civil delivered 20 full-flight simulators (FFSs) to customers and third quarter Civil training centre utilization was
76%.During the quarter, Civil signed training solutions contracts valued at a record $1.5 billion for a range of long-term
commercial and business aviation training agreements, including a five-year, over $500 million extension of its
exclusive training agreement for Flex]Jet. Orders also include digital flight services contracts, and 15 FFS sales.The Civil
book-to-sales ratio(1) was 2.01 times for the quarter and 1.42 times for the last 12 months. The Civil adjusted backlog at
the end of the quarter was a record $8.8 billion.On November 5, 2024, CAE increased its ownership stake in its existing
SIMCOM joint venture, obtaining control of the entity. Prior to acquiring control, CAE's 50% ownership in SIMCOM
was accounted for using the equity method. The change in control provided for the remeasurement of the previously
held equity interest in SIMCOM to its fair value, resulting in a net gain of $72.6 million, which has been excluded from
the determination of adjusted segment operating income. Summary of Civil Aviation results(amounts in millions)Q3-
2025Q3-2024Variance %Revenue$752.6A $622.1A 21A %Operating income$223.4A $101.0A 121A %Adjusted segment
operating income$150.8A $124.2A 21A %As a % of revenue%20.0A %20.0A Adjusted order

intake$1,511.8A $845.4A 79A %Adjusted backlog$8,798.7A $6,119.8A 44A %Supplementary non-financial
informationSimulator equivalent unit292A 275A 6A %FFSs in CAE&€™s network362A 336A 8A %FFS

deliveries20A 13A 54A %Utilization rate%76A %76A a€”A %Defense and Security (Defense)Third quarter Defense
revenue was $470.8 million vs. $472.4 million in the third quarter last year. Operating income was $39.2 million (8.3%
of revenue) compared to $20.6 million (4.4% of revenue) in the same quarter last year. Adjusted segment operating



income was also $39.2 million (8.3% of revenue), compared to $20.9 million (4.4% of revenue) in the third quarter last
year. Defense completed another Legacy Contract during the quarter, bringing the remaining number of programs to
six. Legacy Contracts had an approximate 70 basis point dilutive impact on the third quarter fiscal 2025 adjusted
segment operating income margin.Defense booked orders for $706.9 million this quarter for a book-to-sales ratio of
1.50 times. The ratio for the last 12 months was 2.19 times. The Defense adjusted backlog, including unfunded contract
awards and CAEa&€™s interest in joint ventures, at the end of the quarter was a record $11.5 billion. Notably for the
Defense segment overall, the pipeline continues to reflect a strong demand environment with some $7.3 billion of bids
and proposals pending.Summary of Defense and Security results(amounts in millions)Q3-2025Q3-2024Variance
%Revenue$470.8A $472.4A 4€”A %Operating income$39.2A $20.6A 90A %Adjusted segment operating

income$39.2A $20.9A 88A %As a % of revenue%8.3A %4.4A Adjusted order intake$706.9A $428.5A 65A %Adjusted
backlog$11,481.0A $5,626.5A 104A %Additional financial highlightsNet finance expense this quarter amounted to
$56.6 million, compared to $52.9 million in the preceding quarter and $52.4 million in the third quarter last year. The
increase was mainly due to higher finance expense on lease liabilities in support of training network expansions and
additional finance expense on borrowings to finance the SIMCOM transaction this quarter. The increase was partially
offset by lower finance expense on long-term debt due to a decreased level of borrowings during the period aligned with
our ongoing deleveraging objectives.Income tax expense this quarter amounted to $34.8 million, representing an
effective tax rate of 17%, compared to 12% for the third quarter last year. The adjusted effective tax rate(1), which is
the income tax rate used to determine adjusted net income and adjusted EPS, was 29% this quarter compared to 15% in
the third quarter of last year. The increase in the adjusted effective tax rate was mainly attributable to the mix of
income from various jurisdictions.Net cash provided by operating activities was $424.6 million for the quarter,
compared to $220.8 million in the third quarter last year. Free cash flow(1) was a record $409.8 million for the quarter
compared to $190.0A million in the third quarter last year. The increase was mainly due to higher net cash from
operating activities.Growth and maintenance capital expenditures(1) totaled $97.6 million this quarter.Net debt(1) at
the end of the quarter was $3,352.9 million for a net debt-to-adjusted EBITDA(1) of 3.36 times (3.08 times excluding
Legacy Contracts(1)(2)). This compares to net debt of $3,064.9 million and a net debt-to-adjusted EBITDA of 3.25 times
(2.97 times excluding Legacy Contracts) at the end of the preceding quarter. Adjusted return on capital employed(1)
was 5.7% this quarter compared to 5.5% last quarter and 7.0% in the third quarter last year. During the quarter, no
common shares were repurchased under our normal course issuer bid (NCIB), which began on May 30, 2024.(1) This
press release includes non-IFRS financial measures, non-IFRS ratios, capital management measures and supplementary
financial measures. These measures are not standardized financial measures prescribed under IFRS and therefore
should not be confused with, or used as an alternative for, performance measures calculated according to IFRS.
Furthermore, these measures should not be compared with similarly titled measures provided or used by other issuers.
Refer to the Non-IFRS and other financial measures section of this press release for the definitions and a reconciliation
of these measures to the most directly comparable measure under IFRS.(2) Within Defense there are a number of fixed-
price contracts which offer certain potential advantages and efficiencies but can also be negatively impacted by adverse
changes to general economic conditions, including unforeseen supply chain disruptions, inflationary pressures,
availability of labour, and execution difficulties. These risks can result in cost overruns and reduced profit margins or
losses. While these risks can often be managed or mitigated, there are eight distinct legacy contracts entered into prior
to the COVID-19 pandemic that are firm fixed price in structure, with little to no provision for cost escalation, and that
have been more significantly impacted by these risks (the Legacy Contracts). Management outlookCivilThe secular
demand picture for aviation training solutions remains compelling and the Company continues to be well positioned.
Aircraft original equipment manufacturer (OEM) supply issues have affected airline pilot hiring and training demand
forecasts and remain a near-term headwind for a portion of CAE&4€™ s commercial training business. Due to commercial
aircraft OEMs taking longer than expected to ramp up productiona€”a key driver of initial training demand for
commercial pilotsa€”Management now expects annual Civil adjusted segment operating income growth to be modestly
below its previous outlook of approximately 10%. Consistent with its revised annual growth outlook, product deliveries
are expected to account for a higher proportion of Civil revenue, resulting in an annual Civil adjusted segment
operating income margin modestly below the previously expected range of 22 to 23 percent. Management continues to
foresee ample room for margin expansion in future years on volume, efficiencies and mix. DefenseManagement believes
CAE is well positioned for long-term growth and increased profitability in Defense, as the sector moves into a prolonged
up-cycle with increased budgets across NATO and allied nations. Rising geopolitical tensions are driving a focus on
near-peer threats, defence modernization, and readiness, fueling demand for the training and simulation solutions that
CAE offers. Demand for CAEa€™s Defense training solutions remains strong, driven by a global shortage of uniformed
personnel, prompting militaries to partner with CAE to support readiness. With the benefit of having re-baselined the
Defense business last fiscal year and the higher cadence and quality of execution, Management now expects high-
single-digit percentage Defense annual revenue growth (vs. previous low- to mid-single-digit percentage range) and an
annual Defense adjusted segment operating income margin modestly above the previously indicated range of 6- to 7-
percent in fiscal 2025. Defense margins are also expected to grow beyond the current year. Furthermore, having
successfully completed two of its Defense Legacy Contacts as of the third quarter, Management expects to complete
another contract at the end of the fiscal year, bringing the total remaining to five, as planned. For CAE overall,
Management continues to target three-year EPS growth (FY22-25) in the low- to mid-teens-percentage range.Free cash
flowManagement anticipates strong free cash flow in fiscal 2025, driven by robust operating cash flows and reduced
investments in non-cash working capital. This performance is expected to deliver a conversion rate exceeding 150% of
adjusted net income attributable to the Companya€™s equity holders. This compares to Managementa€™ s previously
stated conversion rate target for the fiscal year of approximately 100%.Finance expense and tax expense Management
expects annual finance expense to be approximately $10 million higher than fiscal 2024, driven mainly by higher
finance expense on lease liabilities in support of training network expansions and additional finance expense on
borrowings to finance the SIMCOM transaction. The run-rate effective income tax rate is expected to be approximately
25%, considering the income expected from various jurisdictions and the implementation of global minimum tax
policies. Balanced capital allocation priorities, accretive growth investmentsCAE expects total CAPEX for fiscal 2025 to
be approximately $30 million higher than fiscal 2024 CAPEX of $329.8 million, which is lower than previous
expectations. Commensurate with CAE&G€™ s ongoing success to capture market opportunities in training,
approximately three-quarters of this relates to organic growth investments in simulator capacity to be deployed to
CAEa€™s global network of aviation-related training centres and backed by multiyear customer contracts. Solid
financial positionA tenet of CAEa€™ s capital management priorities includes the maintenance of a solid financial



position, and it expects to continue to bolster its balance sheet through ongoing deleveraging, commensurate with its
investment grade profile. CAE is targeting a leverage ratio of net debt-to-adjusted EBITDA of below three-times (3x) by
the end of the current fiscal year.Current returns to shareholdersGiven CAE&€™s progress over the last year to
strengthen its financial position, an NCIB was established as part of its capital management strategy and is currently
intended to be used opportunistically over time with excess free cash flow. Given the Companya€™ s outlook and cash
generative nature of its highly recurring business, CAEa€™s Board of Directors will also continue to evaluate the
possibility of reintroducing a shareholder dividend.Caution concerning outlookManagementa€™s outlook for fiscal 2025
and the above targets and expectations constitute forward-looking statements within the meaning of applicable
securities laws, and are based on a number of assumptions, including in relation to prevailing market conditions,
macroeconomic and geopolitical factors, supply chains and labor markets. Expectations are also subject to a number of
risks and uncertainties and based on assumptions about customer receptivity to CAEa€™s training solutions and
operational support solutions as well as material assumptions contained in this press release, quarterly

Managementa€ ™s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) and in CAEa€™ s fiscal 2024 MD&A, all available on our website
(www.cae.com), SEDAR+ (www.SEDARplus.ca) and EDGAR (www.sec.gov). Please see the sections below entitled:
a€ceCaution concerning forward-looking statementsa€, a€ceMaterial assumptionsa€ and a€ceMaterial risksa€.Detailed
informationReaders are strongly advised to view a more detailed discussion of our results by segment in the MD&A and
CAEa€™s consolidated financial statements for the quarter ended DecemberA 31, 2024, which are available on our
website (www.cae.com), SEDAR+ (www.SEDARplus.ca) and EDGAR (www.sec.gov). Holders of CAE&€™ s securities
may also request a printed copy of the Company's consolidated financial statements and MD&A free of charge by
contacting Investor Relations (investor.relations@cae.com).Conference call Q3 FY2025 Marc Parent, CAE President and
CEO; Nick Leontidis, COO; Constantino Malatesta, interim CFO; and Andrew Arnovitz, Senior Vice President, Investor
Relations and Enterprise Risk Management, will conduct an earnings conference call tomorrow at 8:00 a.m. ET. The
call is intended for analysts, institutional investors and the media. Participants can listen to the conference by dialing+
1-844-763-8274 or +1-647-484-8814. The conference call will also be audio webcast live at www.cae.com. About CAEAt
CAE, we equip people in critical roles with the expertise and solutions to create a safer world. As a technology
company, we digitalize the physical world, deploying software-based simulation training and critical operations support
solutions. Above all else, we empower pilots, cabin crew, maintenance technicians, airlines, business aviation operators
and defence and security forces to perform at their best every day and when the stakes are the highest. Around the
globe, wea€ ™ re everywhere customers need us to be with approximately 13,000 employees in more than 240 sites and
training locations in over 40 countries. CAE represents more than 75 years of industry firstsa€“the highest-fidelity flight
and mission simulators as well as training programs powered by digital technologies. We embed sustainability in
everything we do. Today and tomorrow, wea€™ 1l make sure our customers are ready for the moments that matter.For
information on CAE&€™ s sustainability roadmap and achievements, the report can be downloaded at
https://www.cae.com/sustainability/.Caution concerning limitations of summary earnings press releaseThis summary
earnings press release contains limited information meant to assist the reader in assessing CAEa€™ s performance, but
it is not a suitable source of information for readers who are unfamiliar with CAE and is not in any way a substitute for
the Companya€™s financial statements, notes to the financial statements, and MD&A reports. Caution concerning
forward-looking statementsThis press release includes forward-looking statements about our activities, events and
developments that we expect to or anticipate may occur in the future including, for example, statements about our
vision, strategies, market trends and outlook, future revenues, earnings, cash flow growth, profit trends, growth capital
spending, expansions and new initiatives, including initiatives that pertain to environmental, social and governance
(ESG) matters, financial obligations, available liquidities, expected sales, general economic and political outlook,
inflation trends, prospects and trends of an industry, expected annual recurring cost savings from operational
excellence programs, our management of the supply chain, estimated addressable markets, demands for CAE&€™s
products and services, our access to capital resources, our financial position, the expected accretion in various financial
metrics, the expected capital returns to shareholders, our business outlook, business opportunities, objectives,
development, plans, growth strategies and other strategic priorities, and our competitive and leadership position in our
markets, the expansion of our market shares, CAE's ability and preparedness to respond to demand for new
technologies, the sustainability of our operations, our ability to retire the Legacy Contracts as expected and to manage
and mitigate the risks associated therewith, the impact of the retirement of the Legacy Contracts, and other statements
that are not historical facts. Since forward-looking statements and information relate to future events or future
performance and reflect current expectations or beliefs regarding future events, they are typically identified by words
such as a€ceanticipatea€, a€ebelievea€, a€cecoulda€, d€cestimatea€, a€eexpecta€, a€mintenda€, d€mxelikelyas,
a€emaya€, a€ceplana€, a€oeseeka€, a€meshoulda€, a€eewilla€, "strategy”, "future" or the negative thereof or other
variations thereon suggesting future outcomes or statements regarding an outlook. All such statements constitute
"forward-looking statements" within the meaning of applicable Canadian securities legislation and a€ceforward-looking
statementsa€ within the meaning of the a€cesafe harbora€ provisions of the United States Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act of 1995. By their nature, forward-looking statements require us to make assumptions and are subject to
inherent risks and uncertainties associated with our business which may cause actual results in future periods to differ
materially from results indicated in forward-looking statements. While these statements are based on managementa€™s
expectations and assumptions regarding historical trends, current conditions and expected future developments, as well
as other factors that we believe are reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, readers are cautioned not to
place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements as there is a risk that they may not be accurate.A The
forward-looking statements contained in this press release describe our expectations as of FebruaryA 13, 2025 and,
accordingly, are subject to change after such date. Except as required by law, we disclaim any intention or obligation to
update or revise any forward-looking statements whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.
The forward-looking information and statements contained in this press release are expressly qualified by this
cautionary statement. In addition, statements that &€cewe believea€ and similar statements reflect our beliefs and
opinions on the relevant subject. These statements are based on information available to us as of the date of this press
release. While we believe that information provides a reasonable basis for these statements, that information may be
limited or incomplete. Our statements should not be read to indicate that we have conducted an exhaustive inquiry into,
or review of, all relevant information. These statements are inherently uncertain, and investors are cautioned not to
unduly rely on these statements. Except as otherwise indicated by CAE, forward-looking statements do not reflect the
potential impact of any special items or of any dispositions, monetizations, mergers, acquisitions, other business
combinations or other transactions that may occur after FebruaryA 13, 2025. The financial impact of these transactions



and special items can be complex and depends on the facts particular to each of them. We therefore cannot describe
the expected impact in a meaningful way or in the same way we present known risks affecting our business. Forward-
looking statements are presented in this press release for the purpose of assisting investors and others in
understanding certain key elements of our expected fiscal 2025 financial results and in obtaining a better
understanding of our anticipated operating environment. Readers are cautioned that such information may not be
appropriate for other purposes. Material assumptionsThe forward-looking statements set out in this press release are
based on certain assumptions including, without limitation: the prevailing market conditions, geopolitical instability, the
customer receptivity to our training and operational support solutions, the accuracy of our estimates of addressable
markets and market opportunity, the realization of anticipated annual recurring cost savings and other intended
benefits from restructuring initiatives and operational excellence programs, the ability to respond to anticipated
inflationary pressures and our ability to pass along rising costs through increased prices, the actual impact to supply,
production levels, and costs from global supply chain logistics challenges, the stability of foreign exchange rates, the
ability to hedge exposures to fluctuations in interest rates and foreign exchange rates, the availability of borrowings to
be drawn down under, and the utilization, of one or more of our senior credit agreements, our available liquidity from
cash and cash equivalents, undrawn amounts on our revolving credit facility, the balance available under our receivable
purchase facility, the assumption that our cash flows from operations and continued access to debt funding will be
sufficient to meet financial requirements in the foreseeable future, access to expected capital resources within
anticipated timeframes, no material financial, operational or competitive consequences from changes in regulations
affecting our business, our ability to retain and attract new business, our ability to effectively execute and retire the
Legacy Contracts while managing the risks associated therewith, our ability to defend our position in the dispute with
the buyer of the CAE Healthcare business, and the realization of the expected strategic, financial and other benefits of
the increase of our ownership stake in SIMCOM Aviation Training in the timeframe anticipated. Air travel is a major
driver for CAE's business and management relies on analysis from the International Air Transport Association (IATA) to
inform its assumptions about the rate and profile of recovery in its key civil aviation market. Accordingly, the
assumptions outlined in this press release and, consequently, the forwarda€‘looking statements based on such
assumptions, may turn out to be inaccurate. Material risksImportant risks that could cause actual results or events to
differ materially from those expressed in or implied by our forward-looking statements are set out in CAEa€™s MD&A
for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024 and MD&A for the three months ended DecemberA 31, 2024, available on our
website (www.cae.com), SEDAR+ (www.SEDARplus.ca) and EDGAR (www.sec.gov). Readers are cautioned that any of
the disclosed risks could have a material adverse effect on our forward-looking statements. We caution that the
disclosed list of risk factors is not exhaustive and other factors could also adversely affect our results.Non-IFRS and
other financial measuresThis press release includes non-IFRS financial measures, non-IFRS ratios, capital management
measures and supplementary financial measures. These measures are not standardized financial measures prescribed
under IFRS and therefore should not be confused with, or used as an alternative for, performance measures calculated
according to IFRS. Furthermore, these measures should not be compared with similarly titled measures provided or
used by other issuers. Management believes that these measures provide additional insight into our operating
performance and trends and facilitate comparisons across reporting periods. Certain non-IFRS and other financial
measures are provided on a consolidated basis and separately for each of our segments (Civil Aviation and Defense and
Security) since we analyze their results and performance separately.Reconciliations and calculations of non-IFRS
measures to the most directly comparable measures under IFRS are also set forth below in the section Reconciliations
and Calculations of this press release. Performance measuresOperating income margin (or operating income as a % of
revenue)Operating income margin is a supplementary financial measure calculated by dividing our operating income by
revenue for a given period. We track it because we believe it provides an enhanced understanding of our operating
performance and facilitates the comparison across reporting periods. Adjusted segment operating income or
lossAdjusted segment operating income or loss is a non-IFRS financial measure that gives us an indication of the
profitability of each segment because it does not include the impact of any items not specifically related to the
segmenta€™s performance. We calculate adjusted segment operating income by taking operating income and adjusting
for restructuring, integration and acquisition costs, and impairments and other gains and losses arising from significant
strategic transactions or specific events. Impairments and other gains and losses arising from significant strategic
transactions or specific events consist of the gain on fair value remeasurement of SIMCOM (as described in Note 7 of
our consolidated interim financial statements for the quarter ended DecemberA 31, 2024), the impairment of goodwill
(as described in Note 14 of our consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024), the impairment
of technology and other non-financial assets (as described in Note 5 of our consolidated financial statements for the
year ended March 31, 2024) and the impairment reversal of non-financial assets following their repurposing and
optimization (as described in Note 5 of our consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023). We
track adjusted segment operating income because we believe it provides an enhanced understanding of our operating
performance and facilitates the comparison across reporting periods. Adjusted segment operating income on a
consolidated basis is a total of segments measure since it is the profitability measure employed by management for
making decisions about allocating resources to segments and assessing segment performance. Adjusted segment
operating income margin (or adjusted segment operating income as a % of revenue)Adjusted segment operating income
margin is a non-IFRS ratio calculated by dividing our adjusted segment operating income by revenue for a given period.
We track it because we believe it provides an enhanced understanding of our operating performance and facilitates the
comparison across reporting periods. Adjusted effective tax rateAdjusted effective tax rate is a supplementary financial
measure that represents the effective tax rate on adjusted net income or loss. It is calculated by dividing our income tax
expense by our earnings before income taxes, adjusting for the same items used to determine adjusted net income or
loss. We track it because we believe it provides an enhanced understanding of the impact of changes in income tax
rates and the mix of income on our operating performance and facilitates the comparison across reporting periods.
Adjusted net income or lossAdjusted net income or loss is a non-IFRS financial measure we use as an alternate view of
our operating results. We calculate it by taking our net income attributable to equity holders of the Company from
continuing operations and adjusting for restructuring, integration and acquisition costs, and impairments and other
gains and losses arising from significant strategic transactions or specific events, after tax, as well as significant one-
time tax items. Impairments and other gains and losses arising from significant strategic transactions or specific events
consist of the gain on fair value remeasurement of SIMCOM (as described in Note 7 of our consolidated interim
financial statements for the quarter ended DecemberA 31, 2024), the impairment of goodwill (as described in Note 14
of our consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024), the impairment of technology and other



non-financial assets (as described in Note 5 of our consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024)
and the impairment reversal of non-financial assets following their repurposing and optimization (as described in Note
5 of our consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023). We track adjusted net income because
we believe it provides an enhanced understanding of our operating performance and facilitates the comparison across
reporting periods. Adjusted earnings or loss per share (EPS) Adjusted earnings or loss per share is a non-IFRS ratio
calculated by dividing adjusted net income or loss by the weighted average number of diluted shares. We track it
because we believe it provides an enhanced understanding of our operating performance on a per share basis and
facilitates the comparison across reporting periods. EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDAEBITDA is a non-IFRS financial
measure which comprises net income or loss from continuing operations before income taxes, finance expense a€“ net,
depreciation and amortization. Adjusted EBITDA further adjusts for restructuring, integration and acquisition costs, and
impairments and other gains and losses arising from significant strategic transactions or specific events. Impairments
and other gains and losses arising from significant strategic transactions or specific events consist of the gain on fair
value remeasurement of SIMCOM (as described in Note 7 of our consolidated interim financial statements for the
quarter ended DecemberA 31, 2024), the impairment of goodwill (as described in Note 14 of our consolidated financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2024), the impairment of technology and other non-financial assets (as
described in Note 5 of our consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024) and the impairment
reversal of non-financial assets following their repurposing and optimization (as described in Note 5 of our consolidated
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023). We use EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA to evaluate our
operating performance, by eliminating the impact of non-operational or non-cash items.Free cash flowFree cash flow is
a non-IFRS financial measure that shows us how much cash we have available to invest in growth opportunities, repay
debt and meet ongoing financial obligations. We use it as an indicator of our financial strength and liquidity. We
calculate it by taking the net cash generated by our continuing operating activities, subtracting maintenance capital
expenditures, intangible assets expenditures excluding capitalized development costs, other investing activities not
related to growth and dividends paid and adding proceeds from the disposal of property, plant and equipment,
dividends received from equity accounted investees and proceeds, net of payments, from equity accounted investees.
Liquidity and Capital Structure measuresAdjusted return on capital employed (ROCE)Adjusted ROCE is a non-IFRS
ratio calculated over a rolling four-quarter period by taking net income attributable to equity holders of the Company
from continuing operations adjusting for net finance expense, after tax, restructuring, integration and acquisition costs,
and impairments and other gains and losses arising from significant strategic transactions or specific events divided by
the average capital employed from continuing operations. Impairments and other gains and losses arising from
significant strategic transactions or specific events consist of the gain on fair value remeasurement of SIMCOM (as
described in Note 7 of our consolidated interim financial statements for the quarter ended DecemberA 31, 2024), the
impairment of goodwill (as described in Note 14 of our consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31,
2024), the impairment of technology and other non-financial assets (as described in Note 5 of our consolidated financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2024) and the impairment reversal of non-financial assets following their
repurposing and optimization (as described in Note 5 of our consolidated financial statements for the year ended March
31, 2023). We use adjusted ROCE to evaluate the profitability of our invested capital.Net debtNet debt is a capital
management measure we use to monitor how much debt we have after taking into account cash and cash equivalents.
We use it as an indicator of our overall financial position, and calculate it by taking our total long-term debt, including
the current portion of long-term debt, and subtracting cash and cash equivalents. Net debt-to-EBITDA and net debt-to-
adjusted EBITDANet debt-to-EBITDA and net debt-to-adjusted EBITDA are non-IFRS ratios calculated as net debt
divided by the last twelve months EBITDA (or adjusted EBITDA). We use net debt-to-EBITDA and net debt-to-adjusted
EBITDA because they reflect our ability to service our debt obligations.Net debt-to-adjusted EBITDA excluding Legacy
Contracts further excludes the impact from accelerated risk recognition on the Legacy Contracts recorded in the fourth
quarter of fiscal 2024. Net debt-to-adjusted EBITDA excluding Legacy Contracts is also useful because it provides a
better understanding of the specific and impact from accelerated risk recognition on the Legacy Contracts on our
ability to service our debt obligations.Maintenance and growth capital expenditures Maintenance capital expenditure is
a supplementary financial measure we use to calculate the investment needed to sustain the current level of economic
activity. Growth capital expenditure is a supplementary financial measure we use to calculate the investment needed to
increase the current level of economic activity. The sum of maintenance capital expenditures and growth capital
expenditures represents our total property, plant and equipment expenditures. Growth measuresAdjusted order
intakeAdjusted order intake is a supplementary financial measure that represents the expected value of orders we have
received:a€“For the Civil Aviation segment, we consider an item part of our adjusted order intake when we have a
legally binding commercial agreement with a client that includes enough detail about each partya€™s obligations to
form the basis for a contract. Additionally, expected future revenues from customers under short-term and long-term
training contracts are included when these customers commit to pay us training fees, or when we reasonably expect the
revenue to be generated;a€“For the Defense and Security segment, we consider an item part of our adjusted order
intake when we have a legally binding commercial agreement with a client that includes enough detail about each
partya€™s obligations to form the basis for a contract. Defense and Security contracts are usually executed over a long-
term period but some of them must be renewed each year. For this segment, we only include a contract item in adjusted
order intake when the customer has authorized the contract item and has received funding for it.Adjusted
backlogAdjusted backlog is a supplementary financial measure that represents expected future revenues and includes
obligated backlog, joint venture backlog and unfunded backlog and options:&€ “Obligated backlog represents the value
of our adjusted order intake not yet executed and is calculated by adding the adjusted order intake of the current
period to the balance of the obligated backlog at the end of the previous fiscal year, subtracting the revenue recognized
in the current period and adding or subtracting backlog adjustments. If the amount of an order already recognized in a
previous fiscal year is modified, the backlog is revised through adjustments; a€“Joint venture backlog is obligated
backlog that represents the expected value of our share of orders that our joint ventures have received but have not yet
executed. Joint venture backlog is determined on the same basis as obligated backlog described above, but excludes
any portion of orders that have been directly subcontracted to a CAE subsidiary, which are already reflected in the
determination of obligated backlog; a€“Unfunded backlog represents legally binding Defense and Security orders with
the U.S. government that we have received but have not yet executed and for which funding authorization has not yet
been obtained. The uncertainty relates to the timing of the funding authorization, which is influenced by the
governmenta€™s budget cycle, based on a September year-end. Options are included in adjusted backlog when there is
a high probability of being exercised, which we define as at least 80% probable, but multi-award indefinite-



delivery/indefinite-quantity (ID/IQ) contracts are excluded. When an option is exercised, it is considered adjusted order
intake in that period, and it is removed from unfunded backlog and options.Book-to-sales ratioThe book-to-sales ratio is
a supplementary financial measure calculated by dividing adjusted order intake by revenue in a given period. We use it
to monitor the level of future growth of the business over time.Supplementary non-financial information definitions Full-
flight simulators (FFSs) in CAE's networkA FFS is a full-size replica of a specific make, model and series of an aircraft
cockpit, including a motion system. In our count of FFSs in the network, we generally only include FFSs that are of the
highest fidelity and do not include any fixed based training devices, or other lower-level devices, as these are typically
used in addition to FFSs in the same approved training programs.Simulator equivalent unit (SEU)SEU is a measure we
use to show the total average number of FFSs available to generate earnings during the period. For example, in the
case of a 50/50 flight training joint venture, we will report only 50% of the FFSs under this joint venture as a SEU. If a
FFS is being powered down and relocated, it will not be included as a SEU until the FFS is re-installed and available to
generate earnings.Utilization rateUtilization rate is a measure we use to assess the performance of our Civil simulator
training network. While utilization rate does not perfectly correlate to revenue recognized, we track it, together with
other measures, because we believe it is an indicator of our operating performance. We calculate it by taking the
number of training hours sold on our simulators during the period divided by the practical training capacity available
for the same period. Reconciliations and CalculationsReconciliation of adjusted segment operating
incomeDefense(amounts in millions)Civil Aviationand SecurityTotalThree months ended December
312024202320242023202420230perating income$223.4A $101.0A $39.2A $20.6A $262.6A $121.6A Restructuring,
integration and acquisition costsa€”A 23.2A 4€”A 0.3A 4€”A 23.5A Impairments and other gains and losses arising
fromsignificant strategic transactions or specific events:Gain on fair value remeasurement of

SIMCOM(72.6)a€”A a€”A a€”A (72.6)a€”A Adjusted segment operating income

$150.8A $124.2A $39.2A $20.9A $190.0A $145.1A Reconciliation of adjusted net income and adjusted EPSThree
months endedDecember 31(amounts in millions, except per share amounts)20242023Net income attributable to equity
holders of the Company$168.6A $56.5A Net loss from discontinued operationsa€”A 1.9A Restructuring, integration and
acquisition costs, after taxa€”A 18.2A Impairments and other gains and losses arising fromsignificant strategic
transactions or specific events:Gain on fair value remeasurement of SIMCOM, after tax(76.7)a€”A Adjusted net
income$91.9A $76.6A Average number of shares outstanding (diluted)319.8A 319.1A Adjusted

EPS$0.29A $0.24A Calculation of adjusted effective tax rateThree month§ endedpecember 31(amounts in millions,
except effective tax rates)20242023Earnings before income taxes$206.0A $69.2A Restructuring, integration and
acquisition costsa€”A 23.5A Impairments and other gains and losses arising fromsignificant strategic transactions or
specific events:Gain on fair value remeasurement of S}MCOM(72.6)€1€"A Adjusted earnings before income
taxes$133.4A $92.7A Income tax expense$34.8A $8.2A Tax impact on restructuring, integration and acquisition
costsa€”A 5.3A Tax impact on impairments and other gains and losses arisingfrom significant strategic transactions or
specific events:Tax impact on gain on fair value remeasurement of SIMCOM4.1A 4€”A Adjusted income tax
expense$38.9$13.5A Effective tax rate%17A %12A Adjusted effective tax rate%29A %15A Reconciliation of free cash
flowThree monthg endedecember 31(amounts in millions)20242023C§1sh prgvided by operating

activities*$220.8A $148.6A Changes in non-cash working capital203.8A 72.2A Net cash provided by operating
activities$424.6A $220.8A Maintenance capital expenditures(16.1)(20.7)Intangible assets expenditures excluding
capitalized development costs(4.3)(5.0)Proceeds from the disposal of property, plant and equipment1.4A 0.1A Net
payments to equity accounted investees(5.4)(14.9)Dividends received from equity accounted

investees11.4A 13.2A Other investing activities(1.8)(5.4)Impact of discontinued operationsd€”A 1.9A Free cash
flow$409.8A $190.0A * before changes in non-cash working capitalReconciliation of EBITDA, adjusted EBITDA, net
debt-to-EBITDA and net debt-to-adjusted EBITDALast twelve months endedDecember 31(amounts in millions, except
net debt-to-EBITDA ratios)202420230perating (loss) income$(43.7)$525.9A Depreciation and

amortization400.4A 359.7A EBITDA$356.7A $885.6A Restructuring, integration and acquisition

costs111.5A 91.5A Impairments and other gains and losses arising from significant strategic transactions or specific
events:Impairment of goodwill568.0A 4€”A Impairment of technology and other financial assets35.7A 4€”A Gain on fair
value remeasurement of SIMCOM(72.6)a€”A Adjusted EBITDA$999.3A $977.1A Net debt $3,352.9A $3,085.4A Net
debt-to-EBITDA9.40A 3.48A Net debt-to-adjusted EBITDA3.36A 3.16A Last twelve months endedDecember 31(amounts
in millions, except net debt-to-EBITDA ratios)20242023Adjusted EBITDA$999.3A $977.1A Impact from accelerated risk
recognition on the Legacy Contracts90.3A 4€”A Adjusted EBITDA excluding Legacy Contracts$1,089.6A $977.1A Net
debt-to-adjusted EBITDA excluding Legacy Contracts3.08A 3.16A Reconciliation of capital employed and net debtAs at
December 31As at March 31(amounts in millions)20242024Use of capital:Current assets$2,158.1A $2,006.5A Less:
cash and cash equivalents(302.5)(160.1)Current liabilities(2,522.0)(2,358.4)Less: current portion of long-term
debt340.3A 308.9A Non-cash working capital$(326.1)$(203.1)Property, plant and

equipment2,892.6A 2,515.6A Intangible assets3,868.1A 3,271.9A Other long-term assets2,164.6A 2,040.1A Other long-
term liabilities(487.4)(407.7)Capital employed$8,11 1.8A $7,216.8A Source of capital:Current portion of long-term
debt$340.3A $308.9A Long-term debt3,315.1A 2,765.4A Less: cash and cash equivalents(302.5)(160.1)Net
debt$3,352.9A $2,914.2A Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company4,673.5A 4,224.9A Non-controlling
interests85.4A 77.7A Capital employed$8,111.8A $7,216.8A For non-IFRS and other financial measures monitored by
CAE, and a reconciliation of such measures to the most directly comparable measure under IFRS, please refer to
Section 12 of CAEA€™ s MD&A for the quarter ended DecemberA 31, 2024 (which is incorporated by reference into this
press release) available on our website (www.cae.com), SEDAR+ (www.SEDARplus.ca) and EDGAR (www.sec.gov).
Consolidated Income Statement(Unaudited)Three months endedDecember 31Nine months endedDecember 31(amounts
in millions of Canadian dollars, except per share amounts)2024202320242023Continuing

operationsRevenue$1,223.4A $1,094.5A $3,432.5A $3,156.5A Cost of sales883.8A 791.9A 2,523.1A 2,283.5A Gross
profit$339.6A $302.6A $909.4A $873.0A Research and development expenses28.7A 38.1A 101.8A 108.1A Selling,
general and administrative expenses140.2A 140.9A 401.3A 396.9A Other (gains) and losses(0.1)(4.8)(3.7)(8.4)Share of
after-tax profit of equity accounted investees(19.2)(16.7)(63.2)(47.6)Restructuring, integration and acquisition
costsa€”A 23.5A 56.5A 76.4A Gain on remeasurement of previously held equity interest(72.6)a€”A (72.6)a€”A Operating
income$262.6A $121.6A $489.3A $347.6A Finance expense 4€“ net56.6A 52.4A 159.0A 152.6A Earnings before income
taxes$206.0A $69.2A $330.3A $195.0A Income tax expense34.8A 8.2A 53.5A 7.8A Net income from continuing
operations$171.2A $61.0A $276.8A $187.2A Net (loss) income from discontinued operationsa€”A (1.9)a€”A 0.8A Net
income$171.2A $59.1A $276.8A $188.0A Attributable to:A A Equity holders of the

Company$168.6A $56.5A $269.4A $180.2A Non-controlling interests2.6A 2.6A 7.4A 7.8A Earnings per share



attributable to equity holders of the CompanyBasic and diluted a€“ continuing

operations$0.53A $0.18A $0.84A $0.56A Basic and diluted 4€“ discontinued

operationsé€"A (0.01)a€”A 4€”A Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income(Unaudited)Three months
endedDecember 31Nine months endedDecember 31(amounts in millions of Canadian dollars)2024202320242023Net
income from continuing operations$171.2A $61.0A $276.8A $187.2A Items that may be reclassified to net
incomeForeign currency exchange differences on translation of foreign operations$248.8A $(77.7)$315.7A $(105.3)Net
(loss) gain on hedges of net investment in foreign operations(127.8)56.2A (122.5)54.6A Reclassification to income of
gains on foreign currency exchange differences(7.8)(0.1)(7.9)(0.2)Net (loss) gain on cash flow

hedges(35.7)8.3A (36.8)7.4A Reclassification to income of losses on cash flow hedges10.9A 1.8A 15.8A 4.9A Income
taxes11.9A (5.5)9.8A (9.5)A $100.3A $(17.0)$174.1A $(48.1)Items that will never be reclassified to net

incomeA A Remeasurement of defined benefit pension plan obligations$(5.7)$(34.5)$(59.9)$(22.5)Income

taxes1.5A 9.2A 15.9A 6.0A A $(4.2)$(25.3)$(44.0)$(16.5)Other comprehensive income (loss) from continuing
operations$96.1A $(42.3)$130.1A $(64.6)Net (loss) income from discontinued operationsa€”A (1.9)a€”A 0.8A Other
comprehensive loss from discontinued operationsé€”A (3.2)a€”A (1.7)Total comprehensive

income$267.3A $13.6A $406.9A $121.7A Attributable to:A A Equity holders of the X

Company$262.1A $11.7A $396.3A $114.9A Non-controlling interests5.2A 1.9A 10.6A 6.8A Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position(Unaudited)December 31March 31(amounts in millions of Canadian dollars)20242024AssetsCash and
cash equivalents$302.5A $160.1A Accounts receivable547.6A 624.7A Contract assets

543.3A 537.6A Inventories581.8A 573.6A Prepayments92.3A 68.0A Income taxes recoverable73.6A 35.3A Derivative
financial assets17.0A 7.2A Total current assets$2,158.1A $2,006.5A Property, plant and _ X

equipment2,892.6A 2,515.6A Right-of-use assets781.5A 545.8A Intangible assets3,868.1A 3,271.9A Investment in equity
accounted investees524.3A 588.8A Employee benefits assets11.5A 65.7A Deferred tax assets225.3A 233.3A Derivative
financial assets2.2A 4.2A Other non-current assets619.8A 602.3A Total assets$11,083.4A $9,834.1A Liabilities and
equityA A Accounts payable and accrued liabilities$1,071.7A $1,035.3A Provisions36.8A 42.6A Income taxes
payable22.3A 31.1A Contract liabilities 1,012.3A 911.7A Current portion of long-term debt340.3A 308.9A Derivative
financial liabilities38.6A 28.8A Total current liabilities$2,522.0A $2,358.4A Provisions13.7A 14.0A Long-term
debt3,315.1A 2,765.4A Royalty obligations67.3A 74.4A Employee benefits obligations130.4A 98.7A Deferred tax
liabilities42.3A 36.6A Derivative financial liabilities20.5A 2.9A Other non-current liabilities213.2A 181.1A Total
liabilities$6,324.5A $5,531.5A EquityShare capital$2,306.8A $2,252.9A Contributed surplus69.0A 55.4A Accumulated
other comprehensive income324.9A 154.0A Retained earnings1,972.8A 1,762.6A Equity attributable to equity holders
of the Company$4,673.5A $4,224.9A Non-controlling interests85.4A 77.7A Total equity$4,758.9A $4,302.6A Total
liabilities and equity$11,083.4A $9,834.1A Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity(Unaudited)A Attributable to
equity holders of the CompanyA A Nine months ended December 31, 2024Common sharesA Accumulated

otherA A A (amounts in millions of Canadian dollars, Number ofStatedContributedcomprehensiveRetainedA Non-
controllingTotalexcept number of shares)sharesvaluesurplusincomeearningsTotalinterestsequityBalances as at
MarchA 31, 2024?318,312,233AA$2,252.9AA $55.4A $154;0A $1,7Q2.6A $4,224.9A $77.7A $4,302.6A Net

incomea€”A $4€”A $a€”A $4€”A $269.4A $269.4A $7.4A $276.8A Other comprehensive income

(loss)a€”A a€”A a€”A 170.9A (44.0)126.9A 3.2A 130.1A Total comprehensive

incomea€”A $a€”A $a4€”A $170.9A $225.4A $396.3A $10.6A $406.9A Exercise of stock

options2,174,482A 58.8A (8.6)a€”A a€”A 50.2A a€”A 50.2A Settlement of equity-settled

awards43,557A 1.2A (1.2)a€”A a€”A 4€”A a€”A 4€”A Repurchase and cancellation of common shares(856,230)
(6.1)a€”A 4€”A (15.2)(21.3)a€”A (21.3)Equity-settled share-based payments

expensea€”A 4€”A 23.4A a€”A a€”A 23.4A a€”A 23.4A Transactions with non-controlling

interestsa€”A a€”A 4€”A 4€”A 4€”A 4€”A (2.9)(2.9)Balances as at DecemberA 31, )

2024319,674,042A $2,306.8A $69.0A $324.9A $1,972.8A $4,673.5A $85.4A $4,758.9A Attributable to equity holders of
the CompanyA A Nine months ended December 31, 2023Common sharesA Accumulated otherA A A (amounts in millions
of Canadian dollars, Number ofStatedContributedcomprehensiveRetainedA Non-controllingTotalexcept number of
shares)sharesvaluesurplusincomeearningsTotalinterestsequityBalances as at MarchA 31,

2023317,906,290A $2,243.6A $42.1A $167.2A $2,054.8A $4,507.7A $81.2A $4,588.9A Net

incomea€”A $a€”A $a4€”A $a€”A $180.2A $180.2A $7.8A $188.0A Other comprehensive lossa€”A a€”A a€”A (48.8)(16.5)
(65.3)(1.0)(66.3)Total comprehensive (loss) incomea€”A $4€”A $4€”A $(48.8)$163.7A $114.9A $6.8A $121.7A Exercise
of stock options396,018A 9.0A (1.4)a€”A &4€”A 7.6A &€”A 7.6A Equity-settled share-based payments

expensea€”A 4€”A 18.6A a€”A 4€”A 18.6A a€”A 18.6A Transactions with non-controlling

interestsa€”A a€”A a€”A a€”A 4€”A a€”A (8.5)(8.5)Balances as at DecemberA 31,

2023318,302,308A $2,252.6A $59.3A $118.4A $2,218.5A $4,648.8A $79.5A $4,728.3A Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows(Unaudited)Nine months ended December 31(amounts in millions of Canadian dollars)202420230perating
activitiesA Net income$276.8A $188.0A Adjustments for:A Depreciation and amortization304.2A 278.6A Share of after-
tax profit of equity accounted investees(63.2)(47.6)Deferred income taxes9.4A (39.8)Investment tax credits(8.9)
(9.2)Equity-settled share-based payments expense23.4A 18.6A Defined benefit pension plans25.8A 4.5A Other non-
current liabilities(4.8)(7.3)Derivative fingncial assets and lipbilities a€“ net(37.0)(17.5)Gain on remeasurement of
previously held equity interest(72.6)a€”A Other12.5A 23.8A Changes in non-cash working capital108.2A (40.4)Net cash
provided by operating activities$573.8A $351.7A Investing activitiesA Business combinations, net of cash
acquired$(308.0)$4€”A Property, plant and equipment expenditures(247.2)(238.1)Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment3.3A 3.7A Intangible assets expenditures(70.3)(105.8)Net payments to equity accounted
investees(5.0)(40.5)Dividends received from equity accounted investees28.7A 30.3A Other(5.2)(7.2)Net cash used in
investing activities$(603.7)$(357.6)Financing activitiesA A Net proceeds from (repayment of) borrowing under
revolving credit facilities$97.7A $(407.8)Proceeds from long-term debt314.7A 426.1A Repayment of long-term
debt(237.8)h(41.1)Repayment of lease liabilities(42.8)(57.0)Net proceeds fro;n the issuance Qf common

shares50.2A 7.6A Repurchase and cancellation of common shares(21.3)a€”A Other(0.9)a€”A Net cash provided by (used
in) financing activities$159.8A $(72.2)Effect of foreign currency exchange differences on cash and cash
equivalents$12.5A $(15.0)Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents$142.4A $(93.1)Cash and cash
equivalents, beginning of period160.1A 217.6A Cash and cash equivalents, end of

period$302.5A $124.5A ContactsMedia:Samantha Golinski, Vice President, Public Affairs and Global Communications,
1-438-805-5856, samantha.golinski@cae.comInvestor Relations:Andrew Arnovitz, Senior Vice President, Investor
Relations and Enterprise Risk Management, 1-514-734-5760, andrew.arnovitz@cae.com EX-99.2 3
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20241.A A A A HIGHLIGHTSFINANCIALTHIRD QUARTER OF FISCAL 2025A (amounts in millions, except per share
amounts, adjusted ROCE and book-to-sales ratio)Q3-2025Q3-2024Variance $Variance
%PerformanceRevenue$1,223.4A $1,094.5A $128.9A 12A %Operating

income$262.6A $121.6A $141.0A 116A %Adjusted segment operating income1$190.0A $145.1A $44.9A 31A %Net
income attributable to equity holders of the Company$168.6A $56.5A $112.1A 198A %Basic and diluted earnings per
share (EPS) 4€“ continuing operations$0.53A $0.18A $0.35A 194A %Adjusted EPS1$0.29A $0.24A $0.05A 21A %Net
cash provided by operating activities$424.6A $220.8A $203.8A 92A %Free cash

flow1$409.8A $190.0A $219.8A 116A %Liquidity and Capital StructureCapital ) R
employed1$8,111.8A $7,813.7A $298.1A 4A %Adjusted return on capital employed (ROCE)1%5.7A %7.0A Total
debt$3,655.4A $3,209.9A $445.5A 14A %Net debt1$3,352.9A $3,085.4A $267.5A 9A %GrowthAdjusted order
intake1$2,218.7A $1,273.9A $944.8A 74A %Adjusted backlog1$20,279.7A $11,746.3A $8,533.4A 73A %Book-to-sales
ratio11.81A 1.16A Book-to-sales ratio for the last 12 months1.74A 1.10A FISCAL 2025 YEAR TO DATEA (amounts in
millions, except per share amounts)Q3-2025Q3-2024Variance $Variance A A X A
%PerformanceRevenue$3,432.5A $3,156.5A $276.0A 9A %Operating income$489.3A $347.6A $141.7A 41A %Adjusted
segment operating income$473.2A $424.0A $49.2A 12A %Net income attributable to equity holders of the
Company$269.4A $180.2A $89.2A 50A %Basic and diluted EPS 4€“ continuing

operations$0.84A $0.56A $0.28A 50A %Adjusted EPS$0.74A $0.75A $(0.01)(1A %)Net cash provided by operating
activities$573.8A $351.7A $222.1A 63A %Free cash flow$524.5A $227.1A $297.4A 131A %BUSINESS
COMBINATIONSOn November 5, 2024, we increased our ownership stake in our existing SIMCOM Aviation Training
(SIMCOM) joint venture by purchasing an additional interest from Volo Sicuro for a cash consideration of $322.8
million [US$232.3 million], subject to customary adjustments. As a result, we obtained control over SIMCOMa&€™ s four
training centres located in the U.S. providing pilot training across multiple business aviation aircraft platforms.
Additionally, CAE and SIMCOM have extended their current exclusive business aviation training services agreement
with Flexjet, LLC, a related party of Volo Sicuro, and its affiliates by five years, bringing the remaining exclusivity
period to 15 years. 1 Non-IFRS financial measure, non-IFRS ratio, capital management measure, or supplementary
financial measure. Refer to Section 12 4€ceNon-IFRS and other financial measures and supplementary non-financial
informationa€ of this MD&A for the definitions and reconciliation of these measures to the most directly comparable
measure under IFRS.CAE Third Quarter Report 2025 I 1 Managementa€™s Discussion and Analysis2.A A A A
INTRODUCTIONIn this managementa€™s discussion and analysis (MD&A), we, us, our, CAE and Company refer to CAE
Inc. and its subsidiaries. Unless we have indicated otherwise:A 4€“This year and 2025 mean the fiscal year ending
March 31, 2025;a€“Last year, prior year and a year ago mean the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024;a€“Dollar amounts
are in Canadian dollars.A This MD&A was prepared as of FebruaryA 13, 2025. It is intended to enhance the
understanding of our unaudited consolidated interim financial statements and notes for the third quarter ended
DecemberA 31, 2024 and should therefore be read in conjunction with this document and our annual audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024. We have prepared it to help you understand our
business, performance and financial condition for the third quarter of fiscalA 2025. Except as otherwise indicated, all
financial information has been reported in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards (IFRS), as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), and based on unaudited figures. For additional information, please
refer to our annual MD&A for the year ended March 31, 2024 which provides you with a view of CAE as seen through
the eyes of management and helps you understand the Company from a variety of perspectives:A 4€“Our
mission;a€“Our vision;a€ “Our strategy;a€“Our operations;a€“Foreign exchange;a€ “Consolidated results;a€“Results by
segment;a€“Consolidated cash movements and liquidity;a€ “Consolidated financial position;a€“Discontinued
operations;a€ “Business risk and uncertainty;a€“Related party transactions;a€ “Non-IFRS and other financial measures
and supplementary non-financial information;a€“Changes in accounting policies;a€ “Internal control over financial
reporting;a€ “Oversight role of Audit Committee and Board of Directors (the Board).A You will find our most recent
financial report and Annual Information Form (AIF) on our website (www.cae.com), SEDAR+ (www.sedarplus.ca) and
EDGAR (www.sec.gov). Holders of CAE&G€™ s securities may also request a printed copy of the Companya€™s
consolidated financial statements and MD&A free of charge by contacting Investor Relations
(investor.relations@cae.com).NON-IFRS AND OTHER FINANCIAL MEASURESThis MD&A includes non-IFRS financial
measures, non-IFRS ratios, capital management measures and supplementary financial measures. These measures are
not standardized financial measures prescribed under IFRS and therefore should not be confused with, or used as an
alternative for, performance measures calculated according to IFRS. Furthermore, these measures should not be
compared with similarly titled measures provided or used by other issuers. Management believes that these measures
provide additional insight into our operating performance and trends and facilitate comparisons across reporting
periods.Performance Measuresa€ “Gross profit margin (or gross profit as a % of revenue);a€ “Operating income margin
(or operating income as a % of revenue);a€“Adjusted segment operating income or loss;a€ “Adjusted segment operating
income margin (or adjusted segment operating income as a % of revenue);a€“Adjusted effective tax rate;a€“Adjusted
net income or loss;a€“Adjusted earnings or loss per share (EPS);a€“EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA;a€“Free cash flow.2
IA CAE Third Quarter Report 2025Managementa€™ s Discussion and AnalysisLiquidity and Capital Structure
Measuresa€ “Non-cash working capital;a€“Capital employed;a€“Adjusted return on capital employed (ROCE);a€“Net



debt;a€“Net debt-to-capital;a€ “Net debt-to-EBITDA and net debt-to-adjusted EBITDA;a€ “Maintenance and growth
capital expenditures.Growth Measuresa€“Adjusted order intake; 4€“Adjusted backlog;a€“Book-to-sales ratio.Definitions
of all non-IFRS and other financial measures are provided in Section 12.1 4€eNon-IFRS and other financial measure
definitionsa€ of this MD&A to give the reader a better understanding of the indicators used by management. In
addition, when applicable, we provide a quantitative reconciliation of the non-IFRS and other financial measures to the
most directly comparable measure under IFRS. Refer to Section 12.1 4€ceNon-IFRS and other financial measure
definitionsa€ for references to where these reconciliations are provided. ABOUT MATERIAL INFORMATIONThis MD&A
includes the information we believe is material to investors after considering all circumstances, including potential
market sensitivity. We consider something to be material if:4€“It results in, or would reasonably be expected to result
in, a significant change in the market price or value of our shares; ora€“It is likely that a reasonable investor would
consider the information to be important in making an investment decision.A CAUTION REGARDING FORWARD-
LOOKING STATEMENTSThis MD&A includes forward-looking statements about our activities, events and developments
that we expect to or anticipate may occur in the future including, for example, statements about our vision, strategies,
market trends and outlook, future revenues, earnings, cash flow growth, profit trends, growth capital spending,
expansions and new initiatives, including initiatives that pertain to environmental, social and governance (ESG)
matters, financial obligations, available liquidities, expected sales, general economic and political outlook, inflation
trends, prospects and trends of an industry, expected annual recurring cost savings from operational excellence
programs, our management of the supply chain, estimated addressable markets, demands for CAE&€™ s products and
services, our access to capital resources, our financial position, the expected accretion in various financial metrics, the
expected capital returns to shareholders, our business outlook, business opportunities, objectives, development, plans,
growth strategies and other strategic priorities, and our competitive and leadership position in our markets, the
expansion of our market shares, CAE's ability and preparedness to respond to demand for new technologies, the
sustainability of our operations, our ability to retire the Legacy Contracts (as defined in Section 6.2 d€ceDefense and
Securitya€ of this MD&A) as expected and to manage and mitigate the risks associated therewith, the impact of the
retirement of the Legacy Contracts and other statements that are not historical facts. Since forward-looking statements
and information relate to future events or future performance and reflect current expectations or beliefs regarding
future events, they are typically identified by words such as a€ceanticipatea€, a€cebelievea€, a€oecoulda€,
a€ceestimatea€, a€eexpecta€, a€eintenda€, a€celikelya€, a€cemaya€, a€meplana€, a€ceseeka€, a€oeshoulda€,
a€oewilla€, a€cestrategya€, a€cefuturea€ or the negative thereof or other variations thereon suggesting future outcomes
or statements regarding an outlook. All such statements constitute "forward-looking statements" within the meaning of
applicable Canadian securities legislation and a€ceforward-looking statementsa€ within the meaning of the d€cesafe
harbora€ provisions of the United States Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. By their nature,

forwarda€ ‘looking statements require us to make assumptions and are subject to inherent risks and uncertainties
associated with our business which may cause actual results in future periods to differ materially from results indicated
in forwarda€‘looking statements. While these statements are based on managementa€™s expectations and assumptions
regarding historical trends, current conditions and expected future developments, as well as other factors that we
believe are reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on
these forward-looking statements as there is a risk that they may not be accurate.A CAE Third Quarter Report 2025 I 3
Managementa€™s Discussion and AnalysisImportant risks that could cause such differences include, but are not limited
to, strategic risks, such as geopolitical uncertainty, global economic conditions, competitive business environment,
original equipment manufacturer (OEM) leverage and encroachment, inflation, international scope of our business,
changes in U.S. trade policies or regulations, level and timing of defence spending, constraints within the civil aviation
industry, our ability to penetrate new markets, research and development (R&D) activities, evolving standards and
technology innovation and disruption, length of sales cycle, business development and awarding of new contracts,
strategic partnerships and long-term contracts, risk that we cannot assure investors that we will effectively manage our
growth, estimates of market opportunity and competing priorities; operational risks, such as supply chain disruptions,
program management and execution, mergers and acquisitions, business continuity, subcontractors, fixed price and
long-term supply contracts, our continued reliance on certain parties and information, and health and safety;
cybersecurity risks; talent risks, such as recruitment, development and retention, ability to attract, recruit and retain
key personnel and management, corporate culture and labour relations; financial risks, such as availability of capital,
customer credit risk, foreign exchange, effectiveness of internal controls over financial reporting, liquidity risk, interest
rate volatility, returns to shareholders, shareholder activism, estimates used in accounting, impairment risk, pension
plan funding, indebtedness, acquisition and integration costs, sales of additional common shares, market price and
volatility of our common shares, seasonality, taxation matters and adjusted backlog; legal and regulatory risks, such as
data rights and governance, U.S. foreign ownership, control or influence mitigation measures, compliance with laws
and regulations, insurance coverage potential gaps, product-related liabilities, environmental laws and regulations,
government audits and investigations, protection of our intellectual property and brand, third-party intellectual
property, foreign private issuer status, and enforceability of civil liabilities against our directors and officers; ESG risks,
such as extreme climate events and the impact of natural or other disasters (including effects of climate change) and
more acute scrutiny and perception gaps regarding ESG matters; reputational risks; and technological risks, such as
information technology (IT) and reliance on third-party providers for information technology systems and infrastructure
management. The foregoing list is not exhaustive and other unknown or unpredictable factors could also have a
material adverse effect on the performance or results of CAE. Additionally, differences could arise because of events
announced or completed after the date of this MD&A. You will find more information about the risks and uncertainties
affecting our business in Section 11 a€ceBusiness risk and uncertaintya€ of this MD&A and Section 10 4€ceBusiness
risk and uncertaintya€ of our 2024 financial report. Readers are cautioned that any of the disclosed risks could have a
material adverse effect on CAE&a€™ s forward-looking statements. Readers are also cautioned that the risks described
above and elsewhere in this MD&A are not necessarily the only ones we face; additional risks and uncertainties that are
presently unknown to us or that we may currently deem immaterial may adversely affect our business.Except as
required by law, we disclaim any intention or obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements whether as
a result of new information, future events or otherwise. The forward-looking information and statements contained in
this MD&A are expressly qualified by this cautionary statement.In addition, statements that a€cewe believea€ and
similar statements reflect our beliefs and opinions on the relevant subject. These statements are based on information
available to us as of the date of this MD&A. While we believe that information provides a reasonable basis for these
statements, that information may be limited or incomplete. Our statements should not be read to indicate that we have



conducted an exhaustive inquiry into, or review of, all relevant information. These statements are inherently uncertain,
and investors are cautioned not to unduly rely on these statements. MATERIAL ASSUMPTIONSThe forward-looking
statements set out in this MD&A are based on certain assumptions including, without limitation: the prevailing market
conditions, geopolitical instability, the customer receptivity to our training and operational support solutions, the
accuracy of our estimates of addressable markets and market opportunity, the realization of anticipated annual
recurring cost savings and other intended benefits from restructuring initiatives and operational excellence programs,
the ability to respond to anticipated inflationary pressures and our ability to pass along rising costs through increased
prices, the actual impact to supply, production levels, and costs from global supply chain logistics challenges, the
stability of foreign exchange rates, the ability to hedge exposures to fluctuations in interest rates and foreign exchange
rates, the availability of borrowings to be drawn down under, and the utilization, of one or more of our senior credit
agreements, our available liquidity from cash and cash equivalents, undrawn amounts on our revolving credit facility,
the balance available under our receivable purchase facility, the assumption that our cash flows from operations and
continued access to debt funding will be sufficient to meet financial requirements in the foreseeable future, access to
expected capital resources within anticipated timeframes, no material financial, operational or competitive
consequences from changes in regulations affecting our business, our ability to retain and attract new business, our
ability to effectively execute and retire the Legacy Contracts while managing the risks associated therewith, our ability
to defend our position in the dispute with the buyer of the CAE Healthcare business, and the realization of the expected
strategic, financial and other benefits of the increase of our ownership stake in SIMCOM Aviation Training in the
timeframe anticipated. Air travel is a major driver for CAE's business and management relies on analysis from the
International Air Transport Association (IATA) to inform its assumptions about the rate and profile of recovery in its key
civil aviation market. Accordingly, the assumptions outlined in this MD&A and, consequently, the forwarda€ looking
statements based on such assumptions, may turn out to be inaccurate. For more information, including with respect to
other assumptions underlying the forwarda€ looking statements made in this MD&A, refer to Section 11 a€ceBusiness
risk and uncertaintya€ of this MD&A and Section 10 &€ceBusiness risk and uncertaintya€ of our annual MD&A for the
year ended MarchA 31, 2024.4 IA CAE Third Quarter Report 2025Managementa€™s Discussion and Analysis3.A A A A
ABOUT CAE3.1 AAA A A Who we areA At CAE, we equip people in critical roles with the expertise and solutions to
create a safer world. As a technology company, we digitalize the physical world, deploying software-based simulation
training and critical operations support solutions. Above all else, we empower pilots, cabin crew, maintenance
technicians, airlines, business aviation operators and defence and security forces to perform at their best every day and
when the stakes are the highest. Around the globe, wea€ ™ re everywhere customers need us to be with approximately
13,000 employees in more than 240 sites and training locations in over 40 countries. CAE represents more than

75A years of industry firstsa€ “the highesta€ ‘fidelity flight and mission simulators as well as training programs powered
by digital technologies. We embed sustainability in everything we do. Today and tomorrow, wea€ ™1l make sure our
customers are ready for the moments that matter. A CAE4€™s common shares are listed on the Toronto and New York

stock exchanges (TSX / NYSE) under the symbol CAE.3.2A A A A A A Our missionA To lead at the frontier of digital
immersion with high-tech training and operational support solutions to make the world a safer place.3.3AAAAA A
Our visionA To be the worldwide partner of choice in civil aviation and defence and security by revolutionizing our
customersa€™ training and critical operations with digitally immersive solutions to elevate safety, efficiency and

our strategy and investment thesis:a€“Efficient growth;&a€“Technology and market leadership;a€ “Revolutionizing
training and critical operations;a€“Skills and culture.For further details, refer to Section 3.4 a€ceOur strategya€ of
CAEa€™s MD&A for the year ended March 31, 2024 available on our website (www.cae.com), SEDAR+
(www.sedarplus.ca) and EDGAR (www.sec.gov).3.5 AA A A A Our operationsA Our operations are managed through
two segments:a€“Civil Aviation 4€“ We provide comprehensive training solutions for flight, cabin, maintenance and
ground personnel in commercial, business and helicopter aviation, a complete range of flight simulation training
devices, ab initio pilot training and crew sourcing services, as well as aircraft flight operations solutions. The civil
aviation market includes major commercial airlines, regional airlines, business aircraft operators, civil helicopter
operators, aircraft manufacturers, third-party training centres, flight training organizations, maintenance, repair and
overhaul organizations (MRO) and aircraft finance leasing companies; a€“Defense and Security 4€“ We are a global
training and simulation provider delivering scalable, platform-independent solutions that enable and enhance force
readiness and security. The defence and security market includes defence forces, OEMs, government agencies and
public safety organizations worldwide.There have been no significant changes to our operations since the end of fiscal
2024. For further details, refer to Section 3.5 4€aeOur operationsa€ of CAE&4€™ s MD&A for the year ended March 31,
2024 available on our website (www.cae.com), SEDAR+ (www.sedarplus.ca) and EDGAR (www.sec.gov). CAE Third
Quarter Report 2025 I 5 Managementa€™ s Discussion and Analysis4.A A A A FOREIGN EXCHANGEWe report all
dollar amounts in Canadian dollars. We value assets, liabilities and transactions that are measured in foreign currencies
using various exchange rates as required by IFRS.A The tables below show the variations of the closing and average
exchange rates for the three main currencies in which we operate.We used the closing foreign exchange rates below to
value our assets, liabilities and adjusted backlog in Canadian dollars at the end of each of the following

periods:A December 31September 30Increase /March 31Increase /A 20242024 (decrease)2024(decrease)U.S. dollar
(US$ or USD)1.44A 1.35A 7A %1.35A 7A %Euro (4,—~ or EUR)1.49A 1.51A (1A %)1.46A 2A %British pound (A£ or
GBP)1.80A 1.81A (1A %)1.71A 5A %A We used the average quarterly and year to date foreign exchange rates below to
value our revenues and expenses throughout the following periods:Three months endedNine months endedA December
31Increase /December 31Increase /20242023(decrease)20242023(decrease)U.S. dollar (US$ or

USD)1.40A 1.36A 3A %1.38A 1.35A 2A %Euro (4,— or EUR)1.49A 1.46A 2A %1.49A 1.46A 2A %British pound (A£ or
GBP)1.79A 1.69A 6A %1.76A 1.69A 4A %The effect of translating the results of our foreign operations into Canadian
dollars resulted in an increase in this quartera€™s revenue of $19.5A million and an increase in adjusted segment
operating income of $2.4 million when compared to the third quarter of fiscalA 2024. For the first nine months of
fiscalA 2025, the effect of translating the results of our foreign operations into Canadian dollars resulted in an increase
in revenue of $47.4 million and an increase in adjusted segment operating income of $5.2 million when compared to the
first nine months of fiscal 2024. We calculated this by translating the current quarter foreign currency revenue and
adjusted segment operating income of our foreign operations using the average monthly exchange rates from the prior
yeara€™s third quarter and comparing these adjusted amounts to our current quarter reported results. You will find
more details about our foreign exchange exposure and hedging strategies in Section 10 "Business Risk and
Uncertainty" in our MD&A for the year ended MarchA 31,A 2024.6 IA CAE Third Quarter Report



operations a€“ third quarter of fiscal 2025(amounts in millions, except per share amounts)Q3-2025Q2-2025Q1-2025Q4-
2024Q3-2024Continuing operationsRevenue$1,223.4A 1,136.6A 1,072.5A 1,126.3A 1,094.5A Cost of

sales$883.8A 845.5A 793.8A 844.8A 791.9A Gross profit$339.6A 291.1A 278.7A 281.5A 302.6A As a % of
revenue2%?27.8A 25.6A 26.0A 25.0A 27.6A Research and development

expenses$28.7A 37.2A 35.9A 41.7A 38.1A Selling, general and administrative

expenses$140.2A 127.6A 133.5A 138.1A 140.9A Other (gains) and losses$(0.1)(2.7)(0.9)36.3A (4.8)After-tax share in
profit of equity accounted investees$(19.2)(20.0)(24.0)(24.6)(16.7)Restructuring, integration and acquisition
costs$a€”A 30.9A 25.6A 55.0A 23.5A Gain on remeasurement of previously held equity

interest$(72.6)a€”A 4€”A 4€”A 4€”A Impairment of goodwill$a€”A 4€”A 4€”A 568.0A 4€”A Operating income
(loss)$262.6A 118.1A 108.6A (533.0)121.6A As a % of revenue2%21.5A 10.4A 10.1A 4€”A 11.1A Finance expense a€“
net$56.6A 52.9A 49.5A 52.4A 52.4A Earnings (loss) before income taxes$206.0A 65.2A 59.1A (585.4)69.2A Income tax
expense (recovery)$34.8A 10.4A 8.3A (80.6)8.2A As a % of earnings (loss) before income taxes(effective tax

rate)%17A 16A 14A 14A 12A Net income (loss) from continuing operations$171.2A 54.8A 50.8A (504.8)61.0A Net
income (loss) from discontinued operations$&€”A 4€”A 4€”A 20.5A (1.9)Net income

Company$168.6A 52.5A 48.3A (484.2)56.5A Non-controlling

interests$2.6A 2.3A 2.5A (0.1)2.6A A A $171.2A 54.8A 50.8A (484.3)59.1A EPS attributable to equity holders of the
CompanyA A A A Basic and diluted 4€“ continuing operations$0.53A 0.16A 0.15A (1.58)0.18A Basic and diluted a€“
discontinued operations$a€”A 4€”A a€”A 0.06A (0.01)Adjusted segment operating ) ) i
income2$190.0A 149.0A 134.2A 125.7A 145.1A Adjusted net income2$91.9A 76.2A 67.8A 38.7A 76.6A Adjusted
EPS2$0.29A 0.24A 0.21A 0.12A 0.24A 2 Non-IFRS financial measure, non-IFRS ratio, capital management measure, or
supplementary financial measure. Refer to Section 12 4€ceNon-IFRS and other financial measures and supplementary
non-financial informationa€ of this MD&A for the definitions and reconciliation of these measures to the most directly
comparable measure under IFRS.CAE Third Quarter Report 2025 I 7 Managementa€™s Discussion and
AnalysisRevenue was 12% higher compared to the third quarter of fiscal 2024Revenue was $1,223.4 million this
quarter, $128.9 million or 12% higher compared to the third quarter of fiscal 2024. For the first nine months of fiscal
2025, revenue was $3,432.5 million, $276.0 million or 9% higher than the same period last year. Revenue variances by
segment were as follows:A (amounts in millions)Three months ended December 3120242023Variance $Variance %Civil
Aviation$752.6A $622.1A $130.5A 21A %Defense and

Security470.8A 472.4A (1.6)4€”A %Revenue$1,223.4A $1,094.5A $128.9A 12A %Nine months ended December
3120242023Variance $Variance %Civil Aviation$1,980.9A $1,735.0A $245.9A 14A %Defense and

Security1,451.6A 1,421.5A 30.1A 2A %Revenue$3,432.5A $3,156.5A $276.0A 9A %You will find more details in Section
6 "Results by segment" of this MD&A.Gross profit was 12% higher compared to the third quarter of fiscal 2024Gross
profit was $339.6 million this quarter (27.8% of revenue) compared to $302.6A million (27.6% of revenue) in the third
quarter of fiscal 2024. The increase in gross profit was realized in both segments. The increase in Civil Aviation
compared to the third quarter of fiscal 2024 was mainly due to a higher contribution from simulator sales, driven by
higher deliveries, a higher contribution from business training services, driven by a more favourable sales mix and
higher business utilization, and the consolidation into our results of SIMCOM following the increase of our ownership
stake this quarter, partially offset by a lower contribution from commercial training services, driven by a less favourable
sales mix and lower commercial utilization on reduced initial training demand. The increase in Defense and Security
compared to the third quarter of fiscal 2024 was driven by higher profitability on our European and North American
programs.For the first nine months of fiscal 2025, gross profit was $909.4 million (26.5% of revenue) compared to
$873.0 million (27.7% of revenue) last year. The increase in gross profit was realized in both segments. The increase in
Defense and Security compared to the first nine months of fiscal 2024 was driven by higher profitability on our
European and North American programs. The increase in Civil Aviation compared to the first nine months of fiscal 2024
was mainly due to a higher contribution from simulator sales, driven by higher deliveries, a higher contribution from
business training services, driven by higher business utilization and an increased volume from recently deployed
simulators in our network, partially offset by a lower contribution from commercial training services, driven by a less
favourable sales mix and lower commercial utilization on reduced initial training demand, and a lower contribution from
flight operation solutions.Operating income was 116% higher compared to the third quarter of fiscal 20240Operating
income this quarter was $262.6 million (21.5% of revenue), compared to $121.6 million (11.1% of revenue) in the third
quarter of fiscal 2024. For the first nine months of fiscal 2025, operating income was $489.3 million (14.3% of revenue),
compared to $347.6 million (11.0% of revenue) last year. Operating income variances by segment were as

follows:A (amounts in millions)Three months ended December 3120242023Variance $Variance %Civil

Aviation$223.4A $101.0A $122.4A 121A %Defense and Security39.2A 20.6A 18.6A 90A %Operating

income$262.6A $121.6A $141.0A 116A %Nine months ended December 3120242023Variance $Variance %Civil
Aviation$407.9A $295.0A $112.9A 38A %Defense and Security81.4A 52.6A 28.8A 55A %Operating

income$489.3A $347.6A $141.7A 41A %You will find more details in Section 6 "Results by segment" of this MD&A.8

IA CAE Third Quarter Report 2025Managementa€™s Discussion and AnalysisAdjusted segment operating income was
31% higher compared to the third quarter of fiscal 2024 Adjusted segment operating income was $190.0 million this
quarter (15.5% of revenue), compared to $145.1 million (13.3% of revenue) in the third quarter of fiscal 2024. For the
first nine months of fiscal 2025, adjusted segment operating income was $473.2A million (13.8% of revenue) compared
to $424.0A million (13.4% of revenue) last year. Adjusted segment operating income variances by segment were as
follows:A (amounts in millions)Three months ended December 3120242023Variance $Variance %Civil

Aviation$150.8A $124.2A $26.6A 21A %Defense and Security39.2A 20.9A 18.3A 88A %Adjusted segment operating
income$190.0A $145.1A $44.9A 31A %Nine months ended December 3120242023Variance $Variance %Civil
Aviation$373.1A $357.5A $15.6A 4A %Defense and Security100.1A 66.5A 33.6A 51A %Adjusted segment operating
income$473.2A $424.0A $49.2A 12A %You will find more details in Section 6 "Results by segment" of this
MD&A.Finance expense - net was 8% higher compared to the third quarter of fiscal 2024Finance expense - net was
$56.6 million this quarter, compared to $52.4 million in the third quarter of fiscal 2024. The increase was mainly due to
higher finance expense on lease liabilities in support of training network expansions and additional finance expense on
borrowings to finance the SIMCOM transaction this quarter. The increase was partially offset by lower finance expense
on long-term debt due to a decreased level of borrowings during the period aligned with our ongoing deleveraging
objectives.For the first nine months of fiscal 2025, finance expense - net was $159.0 million, $6.4 million higher



compared to the same period last year. The increase was mainly due to higher finance expense on lease liabilities in
support of training network expansions, partially offset by lower finance expense on long-term debt due to a decreased
level of borrowings during the period aligned with our ongoing deleveraging objectives. Effective tax rate was 17% this
quarterIncome tax expense this quarter amounted to $34.8 million, representing an effective tax rate of 17%, compared
to an effective tax rate of 12% for the third quarter of fiscalA 2024. The adjusted effective tax rate3 on our adjusted net
income was 29% this quarter compared to 15% in the third quarter of fiscal 2024. The increase in the adjusted effective
tax rate was mainly attributable to the mix of income from various jurisdictions.For the first nine months of fiscal 2025,
the income tax expense amounted to $53.5A million, representing an effective tax rate of 16% compared to an effective
tax rate of 4% for the same period last year. The adjusted effective tax rate on our adjusted net income was 23% for the
first nine months of fiscal 2025 compared to 9% for the same period last year. The increase in the adjusted effective tax
rate was mainly attributable to the mix of income from various jurisdictions, last year's recognition of previously
unrecognized deferred tax assets in relation to the statutory combination of certain foreign operations and the income
tax benefit from the tax court decision in the prior year.As at DecemberA 31, 2024, various countries where CAE
operates have enacted the global minimum top-up income tax under Pillar Two tax legislation into domestic tax
legislation. This enactment had no material impact on our overall income tax expense nor on the effective tax rate.3
Non-IFRS financial measure, non-IFRS ratio, capital management measure, or supplementary financial measure. Refer
to Section 12 a€®Non-IFRS and other financial measures and supplementary non-financial informationa€ of this MD&A
for the definitions and reconciliation of these measures to the most directly comparable measure under IFRS.CAE Third
acquisition costsThree months endedNine months endedDecember: 31Decgmber 31(amounts in
millions)2024202320242023Integration and acquisition costs$a€”A $23.0A $11.5A $64.9A Severances and other
employee related costsa€”A 0.5A 33.9A 11.5A Impairment of non-financial assets 4€“ neta€”A a€”A 5.2A 4€”A Other
costsa€”A 4€”A 5.9A 4€”A Total restructuring, integration and acquisition costs$a€”A $23.5A $56.5A $76.4A During the
fourth quarter of fiscal 2024, we announced that we would streamline our operating model and portfolio, optimize our
cost structure and create efficiencies. This restructuring program was completed in the second quarter of fiscal 2025.
For the nine months ended DecemberA 31, 2024, costs related to this restructuring program totalled $40.6 million and
included $29.4 million of severances and other employee related costs and $5.2 million of impairment of non-financial
assets. Impairment of non-financial assets primarily included the impairment of property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets and righta€‘ofa€ ‘use assets related to the termination of certain product offerings within the Civil
Aviation segment.In the second quarter of fiscal 2025, the integration activities associated with the fiscal 2022
acquisition of Sabrea€™s AirCentre airline operations portfolio (AirCentre) were completed. For the three and nine
months ended DecemberA 31, 2024, restructuring, integration and acquisition costs associated with AirCentre
remeasurement of previously held equity interestGain on fair value remeasurement of SIMCOMOn November 5, 2024,
we increased our ownership stake in our existing SIMCOM joint venture, obtaining control of the entity. Prior to
acquiring control, our 50% ownership in SIMCOM was accounted for using the equity method. The change in control
provided for the remeasurement of the previously held equity interest in SIMCOM to its fair value with any difference
compared to the carrying value to be recognized as a gain or loss in our income statement, as well as the derecognition
of a portion of Civil Aviation's goodwill, based on the relative fair value of the previously held equity interest in
SIMCOM compared to the cash generating unit included in the Civil Aviation segment. As a result, we recorded a net
remeasurement gain of $72.6 million, including the derecognition of goodwill and associated cumulative foreign
exchange differences of $29.4 million and $7.7 million, respectively, and other costs of $5.3 million.You will find more
details in Section 9 "Business combinations" of this MD&A.5.4 A A A A A Consolidated adjusted order intake and
adjusted backlogA Adjusted backlog4 was up 12% compared to last quarterA Three months endedNine months
ended(amounts in millions)December 31, 2024December 31, 20240bligated backlog, beginning of

period$11,532.5A $9,515.3A '+ adjusted order intake42,218.7A 6,366.0A A - revenue(1,223.4)(3,432.5)A + / -
adjustments997.9A 1,076.9A Obligated backlog, end of period$13,525.7A $13,525.7A Joint venture backlog (all
obligated)4,509.8A 4,509.8A Unfunded backlog and options2,244.2A 2,244 .2A Adjusted

backlog$20,279.7A $20,279.7A The book-to-sales ratio4 for the quarter was 1.81x. The ratio for the last 12 months was
1.74x.A You will find more details in Section 6 "Results by segment" of this MD&A.4 Non-IFRS financial measure, non-
IFRS ratio, capital management measure, or supplementary financial measure. Refer to Section 12 4€ceNon-IFRS and
other financial measures and supplementary non-financial informationa€ of this MD&A for the definitions and
reconciliation of these measures to the most directly comparable measure under IFRS.10 IA CAE Third Quarter Report
2025Managementa€™s Discussion and Analysis6.A A A A RESULTS BY SEGMENTWe manage our business and report
our results in two segments:A 4€“Civil Aviation;a€“Defense and Security.A The method used for the allocation of assets
jointly used by the operating segments and costs and liabilities jointly incurred (mostly corporate costs) between
operating segments is based on the level of utilization when determinable and measurable, otherwise the allocation is
based on a proportion of each segmenta€™ s cost of sales and revenue.Unless otherwise indicated, elements within our
segment revenue and adjusted segment operating income analysis are presented in order of magnitude. 6.1

A A A A A A Civil AviationTHIRD QUARTER OF FISCAL 2025FINANCIAL RESULTS(amounts in millions)Q3-2025Q2-
2025Q1-2025Q4-2024Q3-2024Revenue$752.6A 640.7A 587.6A 700.8A 622.1A Operating

income$223.4A 94.7A 89.8A 147.0A 101.0A Adjusted segment operating

income$150.8A 115.9A 106.4A 191.4A 124.2A As a % of revenue5%20.0A 18.1A 18.1A 27.3A 20.0A Depreciation and
amortization$80.1A 74.7A 73.3A 69.9A 70.7A Property, plant and equipment

expenditures$58.4A 37.0A 71.7A 58.0A 65.9A Intangible asset expenditures$12.8A 17.2A 22.7A 33.1A 21.9A Capital
employed5$5,774.3A 5,143.0A 5,086.0A 4,871.7A 4,774.6A Adjusted

backlog$8,798.7A 6,663.1A 6,585.3A 6,440.4A 6,119.8A Supplementary non-financial informationSimulator equivalent
unit292A 276A 279A 279A 275A FFSs in CAE's network362A 355A 349A 343A 336A Utilization

rate%76A 70A 76A 78A 76A FFS deliveries20A 18A 8A 17A 13A Revenue up 21% compared to the third quarter of fiscal
2024The increase compared to the third quarter of fiscal 2024 was mainly due to higher revenue recognized from
simulator sales, driven by higher deliveries, the foreign exchange impact on the translation of our foreign operations
and the consolidation into our results of SIMCOM following the increase of our ownership stake this quarter.Revenue
year to date was $1,980.9 million, $245.9 million or 14% higher than the same period last year. The increase was
mainly due to higher revenue recognized from simulator sales, driven by higher deliveries, higher revenue from
business training services, driven by a more favourable sales mix and an increased volume from recently deployed



simulators in our network, and the foreign exchange impact on the translation of our foreign operations. The increase
was partially offset by lower revenue from flight operations solutions. Operating income up 121% compared to the third
quarter of fiscal 20240Operating income was $223.4 million (29.7% of revenue) this quarter, compared to $101.0 million
(16.2% of revenue) in the third quarter of fiscal 2024. This quartera€™ s operating income included a gain on fair value
remeasurement of SIMCOM of $72.6 million. Last year's third quarter operating income included restructuring,
integration and acquisition costs of $23.2 million compared to nil this year. The increase compared to the third quarter
of fiscal 2024 was mainly due to the gain on fair value remeasurement of SIMCOM, lower restructuring, integration,
and acquisition costs, a higher contribution from simulator sales, driven by higher deliveries, a higher contribution from
business training services, driven by a more favourable sales mix and higher business utilization, the foreign exchange
impact on the translation of our foreign operations and the consolidation into our results of SIMCOM following the
increase of our ownership stake this quarter. The increase was partially offset by a lower contribution from commercial
training services, driven by a less favourable sales mix and lower commercial utilization on reduced initial training
demand.5 Non-IFRS financial measure, non-IFRS ratio, capital management measure, or supplementary financial
measure. Refer to Section 12 4€eNon-IFRS and other financial measures and supplementary non-financial
informationa€ of this MD&A for the definitions and reconciliation of these measures to the most directly comparable
measure under IFRS.CAE Third Quarter Report 2025 I 11 Managementa€™s Discussion and AnalysisOperating income
for the first nine months of the year was $407.9 million (20.6% of revenue), $112.9 million or 38% higher than the same
period last year. This perioda€™ s operating income included a gain on fair value remeasurement of SIMCOM of $72.6
million. This perioda€™s operating income also included restructuring, integration and acquisition costs of $37.8
million compared to $62.5 million in the same period last year.The increase compared to the first nine months of fiscal
2024 was mainly due to the gain on fair value remeasurement of SIMCOM, a higher contribution from simulator sales,
driven by higher deliveries, lower restructuring, integration, and acquisition costs, a higher contribution from business
training services, driven by higher business utilization and an increased volume from recently deployed simulators in
our network, and the foreign exchange impact on the translation of our foreign operations. The increase was partially
offset by a lower contribution from commercial training services, driven by a less favourable sales mix and lower
commercial utilization on reduced initial training demand, and a lower contribution from flight operation
solutions.Adjusted segment operating income up 21% compared to the third quarter of fiscal 2024 Adjusted segment
operating income was $150.8 million (20.0% of revenue) this quarter, compared to $124.2 million (20.0% of revenue) in
the third quarter of fiscal 2024. The increase compared to the third quarter of fiscal 2024 was mainly due to a higher
contribution from simulator sales, driven by higher deliveries, a higher contribution from business training services,
driven by a more favourable sales mix and higher business utilization, the foreign exchange impact on the translation of
our foreign operations and the consolidation into our results of SIMCOM following the increase of our ownership stake
this quarter. The increase was partially offset by a lower contribution from commercial training services, driven by a
less favourable sales mix and lower commercial utilization on reduced initial training demand.Adjusted segment
operating income for the first nine months of the year was $373.1 million (18.8% of revenue), $15.6 million or 4%
higher than the same period last year. The increase was mainly due to a higher contribution from simulator sales,
driven by higher deliveries, a higher contribution from business training services, driven by higher business utilization
and an increased volume from recently deployed simulators in our network, and the foreign exchange impact on the
translation of our foreign operations. The increase was partially offset by a lower contribution from commercial training
services, driven by a less favourable sales mix and lower commercial utilization on reduced initial training demand, and
a lower contribution from flight operation solutions.Property, plant and equipment expenditures at $58.4 million this
quarterGrowth capital expenditures were $45.4 million for the quarter and maintenance capital expenditures were
$13.0 million.Capital employed increased by $631.3 million compared to last quarterThe increase compared to last
quarter was mainly due to the consolidation of SIMCOM following the increase of our ownership stake this quarter,
resulting in an increase in intangible assets, property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets, and a decrease in
investment in equity accounted investees. The increase was further due to movements in foreign exchange rates,
partially offset by a lower investment in non-cash working capital. Adjusted backlog up 32% compared to last
quarterThree months endedNine months ended(amounts in millions)December 31, 2024December 31, 20240bligated
backlog, beginning of period$6,391.5A $6,107.5A + adjusted order intake1,511.8A 2,975.6A - revenue(752.6)(1,980.9)+
/ - adjustments938.7A 987.2A Obligated backlog, end of period$8,089.4A $8,089.4A Joint venture backlog (all
obligated)709.3A 709.3A Adjusted backlog$8,798.7A $8,798.7A Adjusted order intake included contracts for 15 full-
flight simulators (FFSs) sold in the quarter, bringing the FFS order intake for the first nine months of the fiscal year to
42 FFSs.Adjustments this quarter were mainly due to the inclusion of SIMCOM's backlog into obligated backlog
following the increase of our ownership stake this quarter and foreign exchange movements, partially offset by the
revaluation of prior year contracts and contract cancellations.This quarter's book-to-sales ratio was 2.01x. The ratio for
the last 12 months was 1.42x.12 IA CAE Third Quarter Report 2025Managementa€™ s Discussion and Analysis6.2

A A A AA Defense and SecurityTHIRD QUARTER OF FISCAL 2025FINANCIAL RESULTS(amounts in millions)Q3-
2025Q2-2025Q1-2025Q4-2024Q3-2024Revenue$470.8A 495.9A 484.9A 425.5A 472.4A Operating income

(loss)$39.2A 23.4A 18.8A (680.0)20.6A Adjusted segment operating income (loss)$39.2A 33.1A 27.8A (65.7)20.9A As a
% of revenue%8.3A 6.7A 5.7A 4€”A 4.4A Depreciation and amortization$26.2A 25.4A 24.5A 26.3A 23.6A Property, plant
and equipment expenditures$39.2A 20.0A 20.9A 33.3A 19.3A Intangible asset

expenditures$4.5A 7.2A 5.9A 8.0A 5.2A Capital employed$2,041.8A 2,035.1A 2,110.0A 2,041.2A 2,627.0A Adjusted
backlog$11,481.0A 11,378.1A 10,392.6A 5,743.5A 5,626.5A Revenue stable compared to the third quarter of fiscal 2024
Lower revenue from our North American programs was offset by the foreign exchange impact on the translation of our
foreign operations.Revenue year to date was $1,451.6 million, $30.1 million or 2% higher than the same period last
year. The increase was mainly due to the foreign exchange impact on the translation of our foreign operations and
higher revenue on our European programs, partially offset by lower revenue from our North American
programs.Operating income up 90% compared to the third quarter of fiscal 20240perating income was $39.2 million
(8.3% of revenue) this quarter, compared to $20.6 million (4.4% of revenue) in the third quarter of fiscal 2024. Last
year's third quarter operating income included restructuring, integration and acquisition costs of $0.3A million
compared to nil this year. The increase compared to the third quarter of fiscal 2024 was mainly due to higher
profitability on our European and North American programs and in our joint ventures and lower net research and
development expenses mainly due to the recognition of previously unrecognized investment tax credits this
quarter.Operating income for the first nine months of the year was $81.4 million (5.6% of revenue), $28.8 million higher
than the same period last year. This perioda€™s operating income included restructuring, integration and acquisition



costs of $18.7 million compared to $13.9A million in the same period last year.The increase compared to the first nine
months of fiscal 2024 was mainly due to higher profitability on our European and North American programs and in our
joint ventures, and lower net research and development expenses, partially offset by higher restructuring, integration
and acquisition costs.Adjusted segment operating income up 88% compared to the third quarter of fiscal 2024 Adjusted
segment operating income was $39.2 million (8.3% of revenue) this quarter, compared to $20.9 million (4.4% of
revenue) in the third quarter of fiscal 2024.A The increase compared to the third quarter of fiscal 2024 was mainly due
to higher profitability on our European and North American programs and in our joint ventures and lower net research
and development expenses mainly due to the recognition of previously unrecognized investment tax credits this
quarter.Adjusted segment operating income for the first nine months of the year was $100.1 million (6.9% of revenue),
$33.6 million higher than the same period last year. The increase was mainly due to higher profitability on our
European and North American programs and in our joint ventures, and lower net research and development
expenses.Property, plant and equipment expenditures at $39.2 million this quarterGrowth capital expenditures were
$36.1 million for the quarter and maintenance capital expenditures were $3.1 million.Capital employed increased by
$6.7 million compared to last quarterThe increase compared to last quarter was mainly due to movements in foreign
exchange rates and higher property, plant and equipment, partially offset by a lower investment in non-cash working
capital and higher other non-current liabilities. The lower investment in non-cash working capital primarily resulted
from higher contract liabilities, lower contract assets and lower inventories. CAE Third Quarter Report 2025113
Managementa€™s Discussion and AnalysisAdditional information pertaining to Defense and Security contractsWithin
the Defense and Security segment, we have a number of fixed-price contracts which offer certain potential advantages
and efficiencies but can also be negatively impacted by adverse changes to general economic conditions, including
unforeseen supply chain disruptions, inflationary pressures, availability of labour and execution difficulties. These risks
can result in cost overruns and reduced profit margins or losses. For further details, refer to Section 10 4€ceBusiness
risk and uncertaintya€ of our annual MD&A for the year ended March 31, 2024. While these risks can often be
managed or mitigated, there were eight distinct legacy contracts entered into prior to the COVID-19 pandemic that are
fixed-price in structure, with little to no provision for cost escalation, and that have been more significantly impacted by
these risks (the Legacy Contracts). In the first nine months of the year, we completed two of the Legacy Contracts, and
we expect to complete one additional Legacy Contract at the end of the current fiscal year.For the third quarter of fiscal
2025, the ongoing execution of the Legacy Contracts had a dilutive impact of approximately 0.7% on the Defense and
Security adjusted segment operating income margin. Management is continuing to monitor the remaining Legacy
Contracts as a separate group and will take appropriate measures as may be necessary in the future to mitigate the
cost pressures associated with them. Adjusted backlog up 1% compared to last quarterA Three months endedNine
months ended(amounts in millions)December 31, 2024December 31, 20240bligated backlog, beginning of
period$5,141.0A $3,407.8A + adjusted order intake706.9A 3,390.4A - revenue(470.8)(1,451.6)+ / -

adjustments59.2A 89.7A Obligated backlog, end of period$5,436.3A $5,436.3A Joint venture backlog (all
obligated)3,800.5A 3,800.5A Unfunded backlog and options2,244.2A 2,244.2A Adjusted

backlog$11,481.0A $11,481.0A Adjustments this quarter were mainly due to foreign exchange movements, partially
offset by contract cancellations.This quarter's book-to-sales ratio was 1.50x. The ratio for the last 12 months was
2.19x.This quarter, $17.1 million was added to the unfunded backlog and $139.7 million was transferred to obligated
backlog.Canada's Future Aircrew Training (FAcT) ProgramDuring the first quarter of fiscal 2025, $4.7 billion was added
to joint venture backlog in relation to CAE's share of the award of a 25a€ ‘year contract for the FAcT program to
SkyAlyne, a joint venture between CAE and KF Aerospace, to design, develop, and deliver a comprehensive training and
support system, including live flying, simulation, ground school training, and a suite of in-service support
functions.During the second quarter of fiscal 2025, $1.7 billion was added to adjusted order intake following CAE's
award of a 25-year subcontract from SkyAlyne to support the FACT program. As part of this subcontract, CAE will
initially develop and deliver a range of simulators and training devices for the various aircraft fleets being procured
under the FAcCT program. These training devices are expected to be delivered over the next 5 years.Joint venture
backlog is adjusted to exclude any portion of orders that have been directly subcontracted to a CAE subsidiary, which
are already reflected in the determination of obligated backlog. Therefore, approximately $850 million was removed
from joint venture backlog as a result of the $1.7 billion subcontract awarded to CAE by its joint venture, SkyAlyne, in
the second quarter of fiscal 2025.14 IA CAE Third Quarter Report 2025Managementa€™ s Discussion and

Analysis7.A A A A CONSOLIDATED CASH MOVEMENTS AND LIQUIDITYWe manage liquidity and regularly monitor
the factors that could affect it, including:4€“Cash generated from operations, including timing of milestone payments
and management of working capital;4€ “Capital expenditure requirements;a€“Scheduled repayments of long-term debt
obligations, our credit capacity and expected future debt market conditions.7.1 A A A Consolidated cash
movementsThree months endedNine months endedDecember 31December 31(amounts in
millions)2024202320242023Cash provided by operating activities*$220.8A $148.6A $465.6A $392.1A Changes in non-
cash working capital203.8A 72.2A 108.2A (40.4)Net cash provided by operating

activities$424.6A $220.8A $573.8A $351.7A Maintenance capital expenditures6(16.1)(20.7)(56.6)(79.3)Intangible assets
expenditures excluding capitalized development costs(4.3)(5.0)(17.1)(25.8)Proceeds from the disposal of property, plant
and equipment1.4A 0.1A 3.3A 3.7A Net payments to equity accounted investees(5.4)(14.9)(5.0)(40.5)Dividends received
from equity accounted investees11.4A 13.2A 28.7A 30.3A Other investing activities(1.8)(5.4)(2.6)(9.4)Impact of
discontinued operationsa€”A 1.9A 4€”A (3.6)Free cash flow6A $409.8A $190.0A $524.5A $227.1A Growth capital
expenditures6(81.5)(64.9)(190.6)(158.8)Capitalized development costs(13.0)(28.5)(53.2)(80.0)Net proceeds from the
issuance of common shares26.4A 0.7A 50.2A 7.6A Repurchase and cancellation of common

sharesa€”A 4€”A (21.3)4€”A Business combinations, net of cash acquired(308.0)4€”A (308.0)4€”A Other cash
movements, net(3.5)(0.5)(3.5)2.2A Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash and cash

equivalents3.3A (12.3)12.5A (15.0)Impact of discontinued operationsa€”A (1.9)a€”A 3.6A Net change in cash before
proceeds and repayment of long-term debt$33.5A $82.6A $10.6A $(13.3)* before changes in non-cash working

capitalA A Net cash from operating activities was $424.6 million this quarterNet cash from operating activities was
$203.8 million higher compared to the third quarter of fiscal 2024. The increase was mainly due to a higher
contribution from non-cash working capital and higher net income.Net cash from operating activities for the first nine
months of the year was $573.8 million, $222.1 million higher than the same period last year. The increase was mainly
due to a higher contribution from non-cash working capital and higher net income.Free cash flow was $409.8 million
this quarterFree cash flow was $219.8 million higher compared to the third quarter of fiscal 2024. The increase was
mainly due to higher net cash from operating activities.Free cash flow for the first nine months of the year was $524.5



million, $297.4 million higher than the same period last year. The increase was mainly due to higher net cash from
operating activities, lower payments to equity accounted investees and lower maintenance capital expenditures.6 Non-
IFRS financial measure, non-IFRS ratio, capital management measure, or supplementary financial measure. Refer to
Section 12 a€eNon-IFRS and other financial measures and supplementary non-financial informationa€ of this MD&A
for the definitions and reconciliation of these measures to the most directly comparable measure under IFRS.CAE Third
Quarter Report 2025 I 15 Managementa€™s Discussion and Analysis§.A A A A CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
POSITION8.1A AAA A A Consolidated capital employedAs at December 31As at September 30As at March 31(amounts
in millions)202420242024Use of capital7:A A Current assets$2,158.1A $2,113.6A $2,006.5A Less: cash and cash
equivalents(302.5)(179.7)(160.1)Current liabilities(2,522.0)(2,513.0)(2,358.4)Less: current portion of long-term
debt340.3A 487.0A 308.9A Non-cash working capital7$(326.1)$(92.1)$(203.1)Property, plant and

equipment2,892.6A 2,623.0A 2,515.6A Intangible assets3,868.1A 3,279.0A 3,271.9A Other long-term

assets2,164.6A 2,111.2A 2,040.1A Other long-term liabilities(487.4)(392.0)(407.7)Capital

employed$8,111.8A $7,529.1A $7,216.8A Source of capital7:A A Current portion of long-term

debt$340.3A $487.0A $308.9A Long-term debt3,315.1A 2,757.6A 2,765.4A Less: cash and cash equivalents(302.5)
(179.7)(160.1)Net debt7$3,352.9A $3,064.9A $2,914.2A Equity attributable to equity holders of the

Company4,673.5A 4,382.2A 4,224.9A Non-controlling interests85.4A 82.0A 77.7A Capital

employed$8,111.8A $7,529.1A $7,216.8A Adjusted return on capital employed (ROCE)7Adjusted ROCE was 5.7% this
quarter, which compares to 7.0% in the third quarter of last year and 5.5% last quarter. Non-cash working capital
decreased by $234.0 million compared to last quarterThe decrease was mainly due to higher account payable and
accrued liabilities, lower inventories, higher contract liabilities and higher collections of accounts receivable.Property,
plant and equipment increased by $269.6 million from last quarterThe increase was mainly due to the consolidation of
SIMCOM following the increase of our ownership stake this quarter, movements in foreign exchange rates and capital
expenditures in excess of depreciation.Intangible assets increased by $589.1 million from last quarterThe increase was
mainly due to the consolidation of SIMCOM following the increase of our ownership stake this quarter and movements
in foreign exchange rates. Other long-term assets increased by $53.4 million compared to last quarterThe increase was
mainly due to the consolidation of SIMCOM following the increase of our ownership stake this quarter, resulting in an
increase in right-of-use assets and a decrease in investment in equity accounted investees.Other long-term liabilities
increased by $95.4 million compared to last quarterThe increase was mainly due to higher contract liabilities, higher
derivative financial liabilities, higher share-based payments liabilities and higher employee benefits obligations.Total
debt increased by $410.8 million compared to last quarterThe increase in total debt was mainly due to the incremental
borrowings from the SIMCOM transaction, including the consolidation of SIMCOMa&€™ s total debt, following the
increase of our ownership stake this quarter and movements in foreign exchange rates, partially offset by reduced level
of borrowing aligned with our ongoing deleveraging objectives.7 Non-IFRS financial measure, non-IFRS ratio, capital
management measure, or supplementary financial measure. Refer to Section 12 4€eNon-IFRS and other financial
measures and supplementary non-financial informationa€ of this MD&A for the definitions and reconciliation of these
measures to the most directly comparable measure under IFRS.16 IA CAE Third Quarter Report 2025Managementa€™s
Discussion and AnalysisNet debt increased by $288.0 million compared to last quarterA Three months endedNine
months ended(amounts in millions)December 31, 2024December 31, 2024Net debt, beginning of

period$3,064.9A $2,914.2A Impact of cash movements on net debtA (see table in the consolidated cash movements
section 7.1)(33.5)(10.6)Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on long-term debt A 137.9A 140.3A Impact from
business combinations158.5A 158.5A Non-cash lease liability movements15.8A 124.3A Other9.3A 26.2A Change in net
debt during the period$288.0A $438.7A Net debt, end of period$3,352.9A $3,352.9A A Liquidity measuresAs at
December 31As at December 3120242023Net debt-to-capital8%41.3A %39.5A Net debt-to-EBITDA89.40A 3.48A Net
debt-to-adjusted EBITDA83.36A 3.16A We have a US$1.0 billion committed unsecured revolving credit facility at
floating rates, provided by a syndicate of lenders. In September 2024, we extended the maturity date of our US$1.0
billion unsecured revolving credit facility until September 2028. We and some of our subsidiaries can borrow funds
directly from this credit facility to cover operating and general corporate expenses and to issue letters of credit. We
manage an uncommitted receivable purchase facility of up to US$400.0 million, in which we sell interests in certain of
our accounts receivable to third parties for cash consideration. This facility is renewed annually. We have certain debt
agreements which require the maintenance of standard financial covenants. As at DecemberA 31, 2024, we are
compliant with all our financial covenants. Term loanIn December 2024, we entered into an unsecured term loan
agreement with a syndicated group of banks amounting to US$200.0A million maturing in June 2026, bearing interest
at a variable rate. Proceeds from this term loan have been principally used to repay borrowings on our revolving credit
facility that were used to finance the SIMCOM transaction. Unsecured senior notesIn December 2024, we repaid
unsecured senior notes of US$127.0 million.Credit ratingOn November 5, 2024, S&P Global Ratings affirmed CAEa€™s
BBB- credit rating but adjusted the outlook from &€ stablea€™ to a€ "negativea€™ .Total equity increased by $294.7
million this quarterThe increase in equity was mainly due to net income realized this quarter and changes in other
comprehensive income driven by foreign currency translation adjustments.Outstanding share dataOur articles of
incorporation authorize the issue of an unlimited number of common shares and an unlimited number of preferred
shares issued in series. We had a total of 319,674,042 common shares issued and outstanding as at DecemberA 31,
2024 with total share capital of $2,306.8 million. In addition, we had 4,639,907 options outstanding. As at January 31,
2025, we had a total of 319,793,830 common shares issued and outstanding and 4,466,253 options outstanding.A 8
Non-IFRS financial measure, non-IFRS ratio, capital management measure, or supplementary financial measure. Refer
to Section 12 a€eNon-IFRS and other financial measures and supplementary non-financial informationa€ of this MD&A
for the definitions and reconciliation of these measures to the most directly comparable measure under IFRS.CAE Third
Quarter Report 2025 I 17 Managementa€™s Discussion and AnalysisRepurchase and cancellation of common sharesOn
May 27, 2024, we received regulatory approval for a normal course issuer bid program (NCIB) to purchase, for
cancellation, up to 15,932,187 of our common shares. The NCIB began on May 30, 2024 and will end on May 29, 2025
or on such earlier date when the Company completes its purchases or elects to terminate the NCIB. These purchases
may be made through the facilities of the TSX or the NYSE, or in such other manner as may be permitted under
applicable stock exchange rules and securities laws, at the prevailing market price at the time of acquisition, plus
brokerage fees. All common shares purchased pursuant to the NCIB will be cancelled.During the three months ended
December 31, 2024, no common shares were repurchased under the NCIB. During the nine months ended December
31, 2024, we repurchased and cancelled a total of 856,230 common shares under the NCIB, at a weighted average price

of $24.85 per common share, for a total consideration of $21.3 million.8.2 A A A A ContingenciesDispute relating to



final price adjustments for the sale of CAE4€™ s Healthcare businessDuring the fourth quarter of fiscal 2024, we closed
the sale of our Healthcare business to Madison Industries. The total consideration is subject to post-closing price
adjustments, including on account of working capital. At the time of issuance of the consolidated interim financial
statements, we are engaged in a dispute with Madison Industries, which is claiming up to approximately $60 million in
final price adjustments. While there can be no assurance whether any amount will be payable as a result of the dispute,
no amount has been recognized in our financial statements for any potential losses arising from this dispute as at
DecemberA 31, 2024, as we believe that there are strong grounds for defence and will vigorously defend our position.
Class action proceedingOn July 16, 2024, the Company was served with an Application for authorization to bring an
action pursuant to Section 225.4 of the Securities Act (QuA©bec) and application for authorization to institute a class
action before the Superior Court of QuA©bec in the district of MontrA©al against the Company and certain of the
Companya€™s officers. The application and action are sought on behalf of purchasers of our common shares, and are
based upon allegations that the defendants made false and/or misleading statements to the public and seek unspecified
damages. We have strong legal defences to the proceeding and intend to defend the case vigorously. Based on the
preliminary nature of the proceeding and the inherent uncertainty of litigation, it is not possible to predict the final
outcome or the timing of the proceeding or to determine the amount of any potential losses resulting therefrom, if any.
As such, no amounts have been provisioned in our financial statements with respect to the proceeding.18 IA CAE Third
Quarter Report 2025Managementa€™s Discussion and Analysis9.A A A A BUSINESS COMBINATIONSSIMCOM
Aviation TrainingOn November 5, 2024, we increased our ownership stake in our existing SIMCOM Aviation Training
(SIMCOM) joint venture by purchasing an additional interest from Volo Sicuro for a cash consideration of $322.8
million (US$232.3 million), subject to customary adjustments. As a result, we obtained control over SIMCOMa&€™ s four
training centres located in the U.S. providing pilot training across multiple business aviation aircraft platforms.
Additionally, CAE and SIMCOM have extended their current exclusive business aviation training services agreement
with Flexjet, LLC, a related party of Volo Sicuro, and its affiliates by five years, bringing the remaining exclusivity
period to 15 years.Prior to acquiring control, our 50% ownership in SIMCOM was accounted for using the equity
method. The change in control provided for the remeasurement of the previously held equity interest in SIMCOM to its
fair value. The fair value of our previously held equity interest in SIMCOM was determined by applying a non-
controlling discount to the consideration paid on the acquisition date and was valued at $230.6 million. As a result, we
recorded a net remeasurement gain of $72.6 million.As at DecemberA 31, 2024, the preliminary determination of the
fair value of the net assets acquired and liabilities assumed arising from the SIMCOM acquisition are as
follows:SIMCOMCurrent assets, excluding cash on hand$13.2Current liabilities(19.7)Property, plant and
equipment136.5Right-of-use assets127.6Intangible assets504.9Deferred tax(29.4)Long-term debt, including current
portion(158.5)Non-current liabilities(13.6)Fair value of net assets acquired, excluding cash acquired$561.0Cash
acquired14.8Total purchase consideration$575.8Settlement of pre-existing balances with SIMCOM(22.4)Fair value of
the Company's previously held equity interest in SIMCOM(230.6)Total cash consideration paid on acquisition
date$322.8The preliminary fair value of the acquired intangible assets amounts to $504.9 million and consists of
goodwill of $380.8 million (nona€‘deductible for tax purposes), customer relationships of $123.2 million and other
intangibles of $0.9 million. The goodwill arising from this acquisition is attributable to the expansion of CAE's customer
installed base of business aviation flight simulators, market capacity and expected synergies from combining
operations.The net assets acquired, including intangible assets, of SIMCOM are included in the Civil Aviation
segment.The purchase price allocation is preliminary as at DecemberA 31, 2024.CAE Third Quarter Report 20251 19
Managementa€™s Discussion and Analysis10. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2024,
we closed the sale of our Healthcare business to Madison Industries. At the time of issuance of the consolidated interim
financial statements, we are engaged in a dispute with Madison Industries, which is claiming up to approximately $60
million in final price adjustments. For additional information, refer to Section 8.2 "Contingencies" of this MD&A.The net
(loss) income and other comprehensive loss from discontinued operations are as follows:Three months endedNine
months endedDecember 31December 31(amounts in

millions)2024202320242023Revenue$a€”A $36.0A $4€”A $116.9A Expensesa€”A 34.3A 4€”A 110.5A Operating
income$a€”A $1.7A $4€”A $6.4A Transaction costsa€”A 2.2A 4€”A 2.2A Finance expensea€”A 1.1A 4€”A 3.0A (Loss)
earnings before income taxes$a€”A $(1.6)$4€”A $1.2A Income tax expensea€”A 0.3A 4€”A 0.4A Net (loss) income from
discontinued operations$é€"A $(1.9)$3€”A $0.8A Three months endedNine months endedDecember 31December
31(amounts in millions)2024202320242023Foreign currency exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations$a€”A $(3.2)$4€”A $(1.7)Other comprehensive loss from discontinued operations$a€”A $(3.2)$4€”A $(1.7)No
amount of net (loss) income and other comprehensive loss from discontinued operations are attributable to

nona€ ‘controlling interest.The net cash flows from discontinued operations are as follows: Nine months
endedDecember 31(amounts in millions)202420230perating activities$a€”A $6.0A Investing

activitiesa€”A (12.3)Financing activitiesd€”A (1.1)Net cash flows used in discontinued operations$a€”A $(7.4)20 IA CAE
Third Quarter Report 2025Managementa€™s Discussion and Analysis11. BUSINESS RISK AND UNCERTAINTYWe
operate in several industry segments which present a variety of risks and uncertainties, many of which could materially
and adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operation and could cause actual events to differ
materially from those described in our forward-looking statements. These risks and uncertainties can be found in
Section 10 of CAEa€™s MD&A for the year ended March 31, 2024, available on our website (www.cae.com), SEDAR+
(www.sedarplus.ca) and EDGAR (www.sec.gov). These risks and uncertainties, which management reviews on a
quarterly basis, have not materially changed in the period since MarchA 31,A 2024, except that the &€ceMarket price
and volatility of our common sharesa€ risk in Section 10.5 4€ceFinancial risksa€ is revised as follows, and that Section
10.1 "Strategic risks" is amended to include the "Changes in U.S. trade policies or regulations" risk below.Market price
and volatility of our common sharesThe market price of our common shares may be volatile and subject to wide
fluctuations in response to numerous factors, many of which are beyond our control and are unrelated to our
performance. There can be no assurance that the market price of the common shares will not experience significant
fluctuations in the future, including fluctuations that are unrelated to our performance.Following a significant decline in
the market price of a companya€™s securities, there may be instances of securities class action litigation being
instituted against such company. The Company is currently a defendant in a shareholder-instituted class action
proceeding, alleging such a decline in the market price of our common shares during the first quarter of fiscal 2025. We
cannot provide any assurance that similar litigation will not occur in the future. The existing proceeding and any future
similar proceedings could result in substantial costs and a diversion of managementa€™s attention and resources,
which could have a material adverse effect on our business, operating results, and financial condition. Due to the



inherent uncertainties of litigation, it is not possible to (a) predict the final outcome of the existing proceeding and
other related proceedings generally or (b) determine the amount of potential losses, if any, that may be incurred in
connection with any final judgment on these matters.We maintain insurance coverage for various aspects of our
business and operations, including for litigation. Our insurance programs have varying coverage limits and maximums,
and insurance companies may deny claims we might make. Please refer to a€celInsurance coverage potential gapsa€
under Section 10.6 a€eLegal and regulatory risksa€ of CAEa€™s MD&A for the year ended March 31, 2024 for more
detail regarding the risks associated with our insurance coverage.Changes in U.S. trade policies or regulationsThe
results of the 2024 U.S. elections and the new U.S. presidential administration have introduced greater uncertainty
with respect to trade policies, tariffs and government regulations affecting trade between the U.S. and other countries.
Major developments in trade relations, such as the potential renegotiation or termination of the Canada-United States-
Mexico Agreement, or the imposition of unilateral tariffs on products imported into the U.S. as well as retaliatory tariffs
by the U.S.4€™s trading partners, including those announced in February 2025, could impact the availability and cost
of materials, resources and services, and the availability and cost of our products to U.S. customers, which in turn may
affect our competitiveness and results of operations. While tariffs introduced in February 2025 by the U.S. against
Canada-origin and Mexico-origin imports into the U.S. and related retaliatory tariffs have been postponed, the
implementation of these or other tariffs, or the escalation of trade disputes which interfere with our supply chain and
our sales in these markets, could have an adverse effect on our operations and profitability.12. NON-IFRS AND OTHER
FINANCIAL MEASURES AND SUPPLEMENTARY NON-FINANCIAL INFORMATION12.1 AAA A A Non-IFRS and other
financial measure definitionsThis MD&A includes non-IFRS financial measures, non-IFRS ratios, capital management
measures and supplementary financial measures. These measures are not standardized financial measures prescribed
under IFRS and therefore should not be confused with, or used as an alternative for, performance measures calculated
according to IFRS. Furthermore, these measures should not be compared with similarly titled measures provided or
used by other issuers. Management believes that these measures provide additional insight into our operating
performance and trends and facilitate comparisons across reporting periods.A non-IFRS financial measure is a financial
measure that depicts our financial performance, financial position, or cash flow and either excludes an amount that is
included in or includes an amount that is excluded from the composition of the most directly comparable financial
measures disclosed in our financial statements.A non-IFRS ratio is a financial measure disclosed in the form of a ratio,
fraction, percentage, or similar representation, that has a nona€‘IFRS financial measure as one or more of its
components.A total of segments measure is a financial measure that is a subtotal or total of two or more reportable
segments and is disclosed within the notes to our consolidated financial statements, but not in our primary financial
statements. A capital management measure is a financial measure intended to enable an individual to evaluate our
objectives, policies and processes for managing our capital and is disclosed within the notes to our consolidated
financial statements, but not in our primary financial statements. A supplementary financial measure is a financial
measure that depicts our historical or expected future financial performance, financial position or cash flow and is not
disclosed within our primary financial statements, nor does it meet the definition of any of the above measures.CAE
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measures are provided on a consolidated basis and separately for each of our segments (Civil Aviation and Defense and
Security) since we analyze their results and performance separately. PERFORMANCE MEASURESGross profit margin
(or gross profit as a % of revenue)Gross profit margin is a supplementary financial measure calculated by dividing our
gross profit by revenue for a given period. We track it because we believe it provides an enhanced understanding of our
operating performance and facilitates the comparison across reporting periods.Operating income margin (or operating
income as a % of revenue)Operating income margin is a supplementary financial measure calculated by dividing our
operating income by revenue for a given period. We track it because we believe it provides an enhanced understanding
of our operating performance and facilitates the comparison across reporting periods. Adjusted segment operating
income or lossAdjusted segment operating income or loss is a non-IFRS financial measure that gives us an indication of
the profitability of each segment because it does not include the impact of any items not specifically related to the
segmenta€™s performance. We calculate adjusted segment operating income by taking operating income and adjusting
for restructuring, integration and acquisition costs, and impairments and other gains and losses arising from significant
strategic transactions or specific events. Impairments and other gains and losses arising from significant strategic
transactions or specific events consist of the gain on fair value remeasurement of SIMCOM (as described in Note 7 of
our consolidated interim financial statements for the quarter ended DecemberA 31, 2024), the impairment of goodwill
(as described in NoteA 14 of our consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024), the impairment
of technology and other nona€‘financial assets (as described in Note 5 of our consolidated financial statements for the
year ended March 31, 2024) and the impairment reversal of non-financial assets following their repurposing and
optimization (as described in Note 5 of our consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023). We
track adjusted segment operating income because we believe it provides an enhanced understanding of our operating
performance and facilitates the comparison across reporting periods. Adjusted segment operating income on a
consolidated basis is a total of segments measure since it is the profitability measure employed by management for
making decisions about allocating resources to segments and assessing segment performance. Refer to SectionA 12.3
a€eNona€ ‘IFRS measure reconciliationsa€ of this MD&A for a reconciliation of this measure to the most directly
comparable measure under IFRS.Adjusted segment operating income margin (or adjusted segment operating income as
a % of revenue)Adjusted segment operating income margin is a non-IFRS ratio calculated by dividing our adjusted
segment operating income by revenue for a given period. We track it because we believe it provides an enhanced
understanding of our operating performance and facilitates the comparison across reporting periods. Adjusted effective
tax rateAdjusted effective tax rate is a supplementary financial measure that represents the effective tax rate on
adjusted net income or loss. It is calculated by dividing our income tax expense by our earnings before income taxes,
adjusting for the same items used to determine adjusted net income or loss. We track it because we believe it provides
an enhanced understanding of the impact of changes in income tax rates and the mix of income on our operating
performance and facilitates the comparison across reporting periods. Refer to SectionA 12.3 4€eNona€ IFRS measure
reconciliationsa€ of this MD&A for a calculation of this measure.Adjusted net income or lossAdjusted net income or loss
is a non-IFRS financial measure we use as an alternate view of our operating results. We calculate it by taking our net
income attributable to equity holders of the Company from continuing operations and adjusting for restructuring,
integration and acquisition costs, and impairments and other gains and losses arising from significant strategic
transactions or specific events, after tax, as well as significant one-time tax items. Impairments and other gains and
losses arising from significant strategic transactions or specific events consist of the gain on fair value remeasurement



of SIMCOM (as described in Note 7 of our consolidated interim financial statements for the quarter ended

DecemberA 31, 2024), the impairment of goodwill (as described in NoteA 14 of our consolidated financial statements
for the year ended March 31, 2024), the impairment of technology and other non-financial assets (as described in Note
5 of our consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024) and the impairment reversal of non-
financial assets following their repurposing and optimization (as described in Note 5 of our consolidated financial
statements for the year ended MarchA 31,A 2023). We track adjusted net income because we believe it provides an
enhanced understanding of our operating performance and facilitates the comparison across reporting periods. Refer to
Section 12.3 4€eNon-IFRS measure reconciliationsa€ of this MD&A for a reconciliation of this measure to the most
directly comparable measure under IFRS.Adjusted earnings or loss per share (EPS) Adjusted earnings or loss per share
is a non-IFRS ratio calculated by dividing adjusted net income or loss by the weighted average number of diluted
shares. We track it because we believe it provides an enhanced understanding of our operating performance on a per
share basis and facilitates the comparison across reporting periods. Refer to Section 12.3 4€eNon-IFRS measure
reconciliationsa€ of this MD&A for a calculation of this measure.22 IA CAE Third Quarter Report

2025Managementa€™ s Discussion and AnalysisEBITDA and Adjusted EBITDAEBITDA is a non-IFRS financial measure
which comprises net income or loss from continuing operations before income taxes, finance expense a€“ net,
depreciation and amortization. Adjusted EBITDA further adjusts for restructuring, integration and acquisition costs, and
impairments and other gains and losses arising from significant strategic transactions or specific events. Impairments
and other gains and losses arising from significant strategic transactions or specific events consist of the gain on fair
value remeasurement of SIMCOM (as described in Note 7 of our consolidated interim financial statements for the
quarter ended DecemberA 31, 2024), the impairment of goodwill (as described in NoteA 14 of our consolidated financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2024), the impairment of technology and other nona€‘financial assets (as
described in Note 5 of our consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024) and the impairment
reversal of non-financial assets following their repurposing and optimization (as described in Note 5 of our consolidated
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023). We use EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA to evaluate our
operating performance, by eliminating the impact of non-operational or non-cash items. Refer to Section 12.3 a€ceNon-
IFRS measure reconciliationsd€ of this MD&A for a reconciliation of these measures to the most directly comparable
measure under IFRS.Free cash flowFree cash flow is a non-IFRS financial measure that shows us how much cash we
have available to invest in growth opportunities, repay debt and meet ongoing financial obligations. We use it as an
indicator of our financial strength and liquidity. We calculate it by taking the net cash generated by our continuing
operating activities, subtracting maintenance capital expenditures, intangible assets expenditures excluding capitalized
development costs, other investing activities not related to growth and dividends paid and adding proceeds from the
disposal of property, plant and equipment, dividends received from equity accounted investees and proceeds, net of
payments, from equity accounted investees. Refer to Section 7.1 4€ceConsolidated cash movementsa€ of this MD&A for
a reconciliation of this measure to the most directly comparable measure under IFRS.LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE MEASURESNon-cash working capitalNon-cash working capital is a non-IFRS financial measure we use to
monitor how much money we have committed in the day-to-day operation of our business. We calculate it by taking
current assets (not including cash and cash equivalents and assets held for sale) and subtracting current liabilities (not
including the current portion of long-term debt and liabilities held for sale). Refer to Section 8.1 a€ceConsolidated
capital employeda€ of this MD&A for a reconciliation of this measure to the most directly comparable measure under
IFRS.Capital employedCapital employed is a non-IFRS financial measure we use to evaluate and monitor how much we
are investing in our business. We measure it from two perspectives:Use of capital:4€ “For the Company as a whole, we
take total assets (not including cash and cash equivalents), and subtract total liabilities (not including long-term debt
and the current portion of long-term debt);a€“For each segment, we take the total assets (not including cash and cash
equivalents, tax accounts, employee benefits assets and other non-operating assets), and subtract total liabilities (not
including tax accounts, long-term debt and the current portion of longa€ ‘term debt, royalty obligations, employee
benefit obligations and other non-operating liabilities).Source of capital:4€“In order to understand our source of capital,
we add net debt to total equity.Refer to Section 8.1 a€ceConsolidated capital employeda€ of this MD&A for a
reconciliation of this measure to the most directly comparable measure under IFRS. Adjusted return on capital
employed (ROCE)Adjusted ROCE is a non-IFRS ratio calculated over a rolling four-quarter period by taking net income
attributable to equity holders of the Company from continuing operations adjusting for net finance expense, after tax,
restructuring, integration and acquisition costs, and impairments and other gains and losses arising from significant
strategic transactions or specific events divided by the average capital employed from continuing operations.
Impairments and other gains and losses arising from significant strategic transactions or specific events consist of the
gain on fair value remeasurement of SIMCOM (as described in Note 7 of our consolidated interim financial statements
for the quarter ended DecemberA 31, 2024), the impairment of goodwill (as described in Note 14 of our consolidated
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024), the impairment of technology and other non-financial assets
(as described in Note 5 of our consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024) and the impairment
reversal of non-financial assets following their repurposing and optimization (as described in Note 5 of our consolidated
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023). We use adjusted ROCE to evaluate the profitability of our
invested capital.Net debtNet debt is a capital management measure we use to monitor how much debt we have after
taking into account cash and cash equivalents. We use it as an indicator of our overall financial position, and calculate it
by taking our total long-term debt, including the current portion of long-term debt, and subtracting cash and cash
equivalents. Refer to Section 8.1 a€eConsolidated capital employeda€ of this MD&A for a reconciliation of this measure
to the most directly comparable measure under IFRS.Net debt-to-capitalNet debt-to-capital is a capital management
measure calculated as net debt divided by the sum of total equity plus net debt. We use this to manage our capital
structure and monitor our capital allocation priorities.CAE Third Quarter Report 2025 I 23 Managementa€™s
Discussion and AnalysisNet debt-to-EBITDA and net debt-to-adjusted EBITDANet debt-to-EBITDA and net debt-to-
adjusted EBITDA are non-IFRS ratios calculated as net debt divided by the last twelve months EBITDA (or adjusted
EBITDA). We use net debt-to-EBITDA and net debt-to-adjusted EBITDA because they reflect our ability to service our
debt obligations. Refer to Section 12.3 a€eNon-IFRS measure reconciliationsa€ of this MD&A for a calculation of these
measures.Maintenance and growth capital expenditures Maintenance capital expenditure is a supplementary financial
measure we use to calculate the investment needed to sustain the current level of economic activity.Growth capital
expenditure is a supplementary financial measure we use to calculate the investment needed to increase the current
level of economic activity.The sum of maintenance capital expenditures and growth capital expenditures represents our
total property, plant and equipment expenditures. GROWTH MEASURESAdjusted order intakeAdjusted order intake is



a supplementary financial measure that represents the expected value of orders we have received:a€ “For the Civil
Aviation segment, we consider an item part of our adjusted order intake when we have a legally binding commercial
agreement with a client that includes enough detail about each partya€™s obligations to form the basis for a contract.
Additionally, expected future revenues from customers under short-term and long-term training contracts are included
when these customers commit to pay us training fees, or when we reasonably expect the revenue to be
generated;a€“For the Defense and Security segment, we consider an item part of our adjusted order intake when we
have a legally binding commercial agreement with a client that includes enough detail about each partya€™s
obligations to form the basis for a contract. Defense and Security contracts are usually executed over a long-term
period but some of them must be renewed each year. For this segment, we only include a contract item in adjusted
order intake when the customer has authorized the contract item and has received funding for it.Adjusted
backlogAdjusted backlog is a supplementary financial measure that represents expected future revenues and includes
obligated backlog, joint venture backlog and unfunded backlog and options:&a€“Obligated backlog represents the value
of our adjusted order intake not yet executed and is calculated by adding the adjusted order intake of the current
period to the balance of the obligated backlog at the end of the previous fiscal year, subtracting the revenue recognized
in the current period and adding or subtracting backlog adjustments. If the amount of an order already recognized in a
previous fiscal year is modified, the backlog is revised through adjustments; a€“Joint venture backlog is obligated
backlog that represents the expected value of our share of orders that our joint ventures have received but have not yet
executed. Joint venture backlog is determined on the same basis as obligated backlog described above, but excludes
any portion of orders that have been directly subcontracted to a CAE subsidiary, which are already reflected in the
determination of obligated backlog; a€“Unfunded backlog represents legally binding Defense and Security orders with
the U.S. government that we have received but have not yet executed and for which funding authorization has not yet
been obtained. The uncertainty relates to the timing of the funding authorization, which is influenced by the
governmenta€™s budget cycle, based on a September year-end. Options are included in adjusted backlog when there is
a high probability of being exercised, which we define as at least 80% probable, but multi-award indefinite-
delivery/indefinite-quantity (ID/IQ) contracts are excluded. When an option is exercised, it is considered adjusted order
intake in that period, and it is removed from unfunded backlog and options.Book-to-sales ratioThe book-to-sales ratio is
a supplementary financial measure calculated by dividing adjusted order intake by revenue in a given period. We use it
to monitor the level of future growth of the business over time.24 IA CAE Third Quarter Report 2025Managementa€™ s
Discussion and Analysis12.2 Supplementary non-financial information definitionsFull-flight simulators (FFSs) in CAE's
networkA FFS is a full-size replica of a specific make, model and series of an aircraft cockpit, including a motion
system. In our count of FFSs in the network, we generally only include FFSs that are of the highest fidelity and do not
include any fixed based training devices, or other lower-level devices, as these are typically used in addition to FFSs in
the same approved training programs.Simulator equivalent unit (SEU)SEU is a measure we use to show the total
average number of FFSs available to generate earnings during the period. For example, in the case of a 50/50 flight
training joint venture, we will report only 50% of the FFSs under this joint venture as a SEU. If a FFS is being powered
down and relocated, it will not be included as a SEU until the FFS is re-installed and available to generate
earnings.Utilization rateUtilization rate is a measure we use to assess the performance of our Civil simulator training
network. While utilization rate does not perfectly correlate to revenue recognized, we track it, together with other
measures, because we believe it is an indicator of our operating performance. We calculate it by taking the number of
training hours sold on our simulators during the period divided by the practical training capacity available for the same
period.12.3 A A A A A Non-IFRS measure reconciliationsReconciliation of adjusted segment operating
incomeDefense(amounts in millions)Civil Aviationand SecurityTotalThree months ended December
312024202320242023202420230perating income$223.4A $101.0A $39.2A $20.6A $262.6A $121.6A Restructuring,
integration and acquisition costsa€”A 23.2A 4€”A 0.3A 4€”A 23.5A Impairments and other gains and losses arising
fromsignificant strategic transactions or specific events:Gain on fair value remeasurement of

SIMCOM(72.6)a€”A a€”A a€”A (72.6)a€”A Adjusted segment operating income

$150.8A $124.2A $39.2A $20.9A $190.0A $145.1A Defense(amounts in millions)Civil Aviationand SecurityTotalNine
months ended December 312024202320242023202420230perating

income$407.9A $295.0A $81.4A $52.6A $489.3A $347.6A Restructuring, integration and acquisition

costs37.8A 62.5A 18.7A 13.9A 56.5A 76.4A Impairments and other gains and losses arising fromsignificant strategic
transactions or specific events:Gain on fair value remeasurement of SIMCOM(72.6)a€”A 4€”A 4€”A (72.6)a€”A Adjusted
segment operating income$373.1A $357.5A $100.1A $66.5A $473.2A $424.0A CAE Third Quarter Report 2025 I 25
Managementa€™s Discussion and AnalysisReconciliation of adjusted net income and adjusted EPSThree months
endedNine months endedDecember 31December 31(amounts in millions, except per share
amounts)2024202320242023Net income attributable to equity holders of the

Company$168.6A $56.5A $269.4A $180.2A Net loss (income) from discontinued

operationsa€”A 1.9A 4€”A (0.8)Restructuring, integration and acquisition costs, after

taxa€”A 18.2A 43.2A 58.7A Impairments and other gains and losses arising fromsignificant strategic transactions or
specific events:Gain on fair value remeasurement of SIMCOM, after tax(76.7)a€”A (76.7)a€"A Adjusted net
income$91.9A $76.6A $235.9A $238.1A Average number of shares outstanding (diluted)

319.8A 319.1A 319.2A 319.0A Adjusted EPS$0.29A $0.24A $0.74A $0.75A Calculation of adjusted effective tax
rateThree months endedNine months endedDecember 31December 31(amounts in millions, except effective tax
rates)2024202320242023Earnings before income taxes$206.0A $69.2A $330.3A $195.0A Restructuring, integration and
acquisition costsa€”A 23.5A 56.5A 76.4A Impairments and other gains and losses arising fromsignificant strategic
transactions or specific events:Gain on fair value remeasurement of SIMCOM(72.6)a€”A (72.6)a€”A Adjusted earnings
before income taxes$133.4A $92.7A $314.2A $271.4A Income tax expense$34.8A $8.2A $53.5A $7.8A Tax impact on
restructuring, integration and acquisition costsa€”A 5.3A 13.3A 17.7A Tax impact on impairments and other gains and
losses arisingfrom significant strategic transactions or specific events:Tax impact on gain on fair value remeasurement
of SIMCOMA4.1A a€”A 4.1A 4€”A Adjusted income tax expense$38.9A $13.5A $70.9A $25.5A Effective tax

rate%17A %12A %16A %4A Adjusted effective tax rate%29A %15A %23A %9A 26 IA CAE Third Quarter Report
2025Managementa€™s Discussion and AnalysisReconciliation of EBITDA, adjusted EBITDA, net debt-to-EBITDA and
net debt-to-adjusted EBITDALast twelve months endedDecember 31(amounts in millions, except net debt-to-EBITDA
ratios)202420230perating (loss) income$(43.7)$525.9A Depreciation and

amortization400.4A 359.7A EBITDA$356.7A $885.6A Restructuring, integration and acquisition

costs111.5A 91.5A Impairments and other gains and losses arising fromsignificant strategic transactions or specific



events:Impairment of goodwill568.0A 4€”A Impairment of technology and other financial assets35.7A 4€”A Gain on fair
value remeasurement of SIMCOM(72.6)a€”A Adjusted EBITDA$999.3A $977.1A Net debt $3,352.9A $3,085.4A Net
debt-to-EBITDA9.40A 3.48A Net debt-to-adjusted EBITDA3.36A 3.16A 13. A CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIESNew and amended standards adopted Amendments to IAS 1 4€“ Presentation of Financial StatementsIn
January 2020, IASB issued a narrow-scope amendment to IAS 1 4€“ Presentation of Financial Statements, which
clarifies that the classification of liabilities as current or non-current is based on rights that are in existence at the end
of the reporting period. Classification is unaffected by expectations about whether an entity will exercise its right to
defer settlement of a liability or events after the reporting date. The amendment also clarifies what IAS 1 means when it
refers to the a€ " settlementa€™ of a liability. In October 2022, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 1 4€“ Presentation of
Financial Statements, which specify that for long-term debt with covenants to be complied with after the reporting date,
such covenants do not affect the classification of debt as current or nona€‘current at the reporting date, but do require
disclosures in the notes to the financial statements. Amendments to IFRS 16 a€“ LeasesIn September 2022, IASB issued
amendments to IFRS 16 4€“ Leases, which requires a seller-lessee to subsequently measure lease liabilities arising from
a leaseback in a way that it does not recognize any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right of use it retains.
The new requirements do not prevent a seller-lessee from recognizing in profit or loss any gain or loss relating to the
partial or full termination of a lease. Amendments to IAS 7 4€“ Statement of Cash Flows, and IFRS 7 4€“ Financial
Instruments: disclosuresIn May 2023, IASB issued amendments to IAS 7 4€“ Statement of Cash Flows and IFRS 7 a€“
Financial Instruments: disclosure, which introduces disclosure requirements to enhance the transparency of supplier
finance arrangements and their effects on an entitya€™s liabilities, cash flows and exposure to liquidity risk. The
amendments provide a transition relief whereby an entity is not required to provide the disclosures, otherwise required
by the amendments, for any interim period in the year of initial application of the amendments. We have elected to
apply the transition relief to our consolidated interim financial statements. These amendments to accounting standards
were applied for the first time on AprilA 1,A 2024, but did not have a significant impact on our consolidated interim
financial statements. CAE Third Quarter Report 2025 I 27 Managementa€™s Discussion and Analysis14. A INTERNAL
CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTINGThe Company has established and maintains disclosure controls and
procedures designed to provide reasonable assurance that material information relating to the Company is
communicated to the President and Chief Executive Officer and the Interim Chief Financial Officer by others,
particularly during the period in which annual and interim filings are prepared, and that information required to be
disclosed by the Company in its annual filings, interim filings or other reports filed or submitted by the Company under
Canadian and U.S. securities laws is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified
under those laws and the related rules. As of DecemberA 31, 2024, management evaluated, under the supervision of
and with the participation of the President and Chief Executive Officer and the Interim Chief Financial Officer, the
effectiveness of the Companya€™s disclosure controls and procedures as defined under National Instrument 52-109
adopted by the Canadian Securities Administrators and in Rule 13(a)-15(e) under the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended, and have concluded that the Companya€™s disclosure controls and procedures were effective. The
Company has also established and maintains internal control over financial reporting, as defined under National
Instrument 52-109 and in Rule 13(a)-15(f) under the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. The
Companya€™s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed, under the supervision of the President
and Chief Executive Officer as well as the Interim Chief Financial Officer, and effected by management and other key
CAE personnel, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
the Companya€™s consolidated financial statements for external reporting purposes in accordance with IFRS as issued
by the IASB. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate. There were no changes in the Companya€™s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the third quarter of fiscal 2025 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially
affect, the Companya€™s internal control over financial reporting. On November 5, 2024, we obtained control over our
existing SIMCOM Aviation Training (SIMCOM) joint venture. In accordance with National Instrument 52-109 -
Certification of Disclosure in Issuers' Annual and Interim Filings, the Chief Executive Officer and the Interim Chief
Financial Officer of the Company have limited the scope of their design of CAE's disclosure controls and procedures and
internal control over financial reporting to exclude controls, policies and procedures of SIMCOM, for up to one year
following the acquisition. We have begun to integrate their internal controls, policies and procedures and we have
incorporated internal controls over significant processes specific to the acquisition that we believe are appropriate and
necessary in consideration of the level of related integration. As the post-closing integration continues, we will continue
to review the internal controls and processes with those of CAE.Since we obtained control on November 5, 2024,
SIMCOM's contribution to our consolidated interim financial statements for the nine months ended DecemberA 31,
2024 was 1% and 2% of each of consolidated revenues and net income, respectively. Additionally, as at DecemberA 31,
2024, SIMCOM's total assets and total liabilities were 7% and 4% of consolidated total assets and total liabilities,
respectively.28 IA CAE Third Quarter Report 2025Managementa€™ s Discussion and Analysis15.A A A A SELECTED
QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION(amounts in millions, except per share amounts)Q1Q2Q3Q4Year to dateFiscal
holders of the Company $48.3A 52.5A 168.6A (1)269.4A Non-controlling interests $2.5A 2.3A 2.6A (1)7.4A Basic and
diluted EPS attributable to equity holders of the Company $0.15A 0.16A 0.53A (1)0.84A Adjusted

EPS$0.21A 0.24A 0.29A (1)0.74A Average number of shares outstanding (basic)

318.6A 318.7A 319.0A (1)318.8A Average number of shares outstanding (diluted)

income $67.8A 61.1A 59.1A (484.3)(296.3)Equity holders of the Company Continuing operations

$64.8A 56.2A 58.4A (504.7)(325.3)Discontinued operations $0.5A 2.2A (1.9)20.5A 21.3A Non-controlling interests
$2.5A 2.7A 2.6A (0.1)7.7A Basic and diluted EPS attributable to equity holders of the Company

$0.20A 0.18A 0.17A (1.52)(0.95)Continuing operations $0.20A 0.17A 0.18A (1.58)(1.02)Discontinued operations

$4€”A 0.01A (0.01)0.06A 0.07A Adjusted EPS$0.24A 0.26A 0.24A 0.12A 0.87A Average number of shares outstanding
(basic) 318.0A 318.2A 318.3A 318.3A 318.2A Average number of shares outstanding (diluted)

income$3.7A 46.3A 80.0A 101.9A 231.9A Equity holders of the Company Continuing operations

$6.8A 44.2A 76.0A 93.6A 220.6A Discontinued operations $(5.1)0.3A 2.1A 4.8A 2.1A Non-controlling interests



$2.0A 1.8A 1.9A 3.5A 9.2A Basic and diluted EPS attributable to equity holders of the Company

$4€”A 0.14A 0.25A 0.31A 0.70A Continuing operations $0.02A 0.14A 0.24A 0.29A 0.69A Discontinued operations
$(0.02)a€”A 0.01A 0.02A 0.01A Adjusted EPS$0.07A 0.19A 0.27A 0.33A 0.87A Average number of shares outstanding
(basic) 317.1A 317.8A 317.9A 317.9A 317.7A Average number of shares outstanding (diluted)

318.2A 318.4A 318.3A 318.7A 318.4A (1) Not available. CAE Third Quarter Report 2025 I 29 Consolidated Interim
Financial StatementsConsolidated Income StatementA Three months endedDecember 31Nine months endedDecember
31(Unaudited)(amoupts in milligns of Canqdian dollal:s, except per share amoupts)Not932024202320242023Contjnuing
operationsRevenue4A $1,223.4A $1,094.5A $3,432.5A $3,156.5A Cost of salesA 883.8A 791.9A 2,523.1A 2,283.5A Gross
profitA $339.6A $302.6A $909.4A $873.0A Research and development expensesA 28.7A 38.1A 101.8A 108.1A Selling,
general and administrative expensesA 140.2A 140.9A 401.3A 396.9A Other (gains) and losses5A (0.1)(4.8)(3.7)
(8.4)Share of after-tax profit of equity accounted investees4A (19.2)(16.7)(63.2)(47.6)Restructuring, integration and
acquisition costs6A 4€”A 23.5A 56.5A 76.4A Gain on remeasurement of previously held equity

interest7A (72.6)a€”A (72.6)4€”A Operating incomeA $262.6A $121.6A $489.3A $347.6A Finance expense 4€“

net8A 56.6A 52.4A 159.0A 152.6A Earnings before income taxesA $206.0A $69.2A $330.3A $195.0A Income tax
expense34.8A 8.2A 53.5A 7.8A Net income from continuing operationsA $171.2A $61.0A $276.8A $187.2A Net (loss)
income from discontinued operations3A a€”A (1.9)a€”A 0.8A Net

incomeA $171.2A $59.1A $276.8A $188.0A Attributable to:A A A Equity holders of the

CompanyA $168.6A $56.5A $269.4A $180.2A Non-controlling interestsA 2.6A 2.6A 7.4A 7.8A Earnings per share
attributable to equity holders of the CompanyBasic and diluted a4€“ continuing

operations10A $0.53$0.18$0.84$0.56Basic and diluted &€“ discontinued operations10A a€”A (0.01)a€”A a€”A The
accompanying notes form an integral part of these Consolidated Interim Financial Statements.30 IA CAE Third Quarter
Report 2025Consolidated Interim Financial StatementsConsolidated Statement of Comprehensive IncomeThree months
endedDecember 31Nine months endedDecember 31(Unaudited)(amounts in millions of Canadian i
dollars)Notes2024202320242023Net income from continuing operations$171.2A $61.0A $276.8A $187.2A Items that
may be reclassified to net incomeForeign currency exchange differences on translation of foreign

operations$248.8A $(77.7)$315.7A $(105.3)Net (loss) gain on hedges of net investment in foreign
operations(127.8)56.2A (122.5)54.6A Reclassification to income of gains on foreign currency exchange differences(7.8)
(0.1)(7.9)(0.2)Net (loss)hgainhon cash flow hedge§(35.7)8.3A (36.6)7.4A Replassification to income of losses on cash flow
hedges10.9A 1.8A 15.8A 4.9A Income taxes11.9A (5.5)9.8A (9.5)A $100.3A $(17.0)$174.1A $(48.1)Items that will never
be reclassified to net incomeA A Remeasurement of defined benefit pension plan
obligations$(5.7)$(34.5)$(59.9)$(22.5)Income taxes1.5A 9.2A 15.9A 6.0A A $(4.2)$(25.3)$(44.0)$(16.5)Other
comprehensive income (loss) from continuing operations$96.1A $(42.3)$130.1A $(64.6)Net (loss) income from
discontinued operation53é€"A (1.9)4€”A 0.8A Other comprehensive loss from discontinued

operations3a€”A (3.2)a€”A (1.7)Total comprehensive income$267.3A $13.6A $406.9A $121.7A Attributable

to:A A Equity holders of the Company$262.1A $11.7A $396.3A $114.9A Non-controlling

interests5.2A 1.9A 10.6A 6.8A The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Consolidated Interim Financial
Statements.CAE Third Quarter Report 2025 I 31 Consolidated Interim Financial StatementsConsolidated Statement of
Financial Position(Unaudited)December 31March 31(amounts in millions of Canadian dollars)20242024AssetsCash and
cash equivalentsA $302.5A $160.1A Accounts receivable547.6A 624.7A Contract assets X X

543.3A 537.6A Inventoriesb581.8A 573.6A Prepayments92.3A 68.0A Income taxes recoverable73.6A 35.3A Derivative
financial assets17.0A 7.2A Total current assets$2,158.1A $2,006.5A Property, plant and

equipment2,892.6A 2,515.6A Right-of-use assets781.5A 545.8A Intangible assets3,868.1A 3,271.9A Investment in equity
accounted investees524.3A 588.8A Employee benefits assets11.5A 65.7A Deferred tax assets225.3A 233.3A Derivative
financial assets2.2A 4.2A Other non-current assets619.8A 602.3A Total assets$11,083.4A $9,834.1A Liabilities and
equityA A Accounts payable and accrued liabilities$1,071.7A $1,035.3A Provisions36.8A 42.6A Income taxes
payable22.3A 31.1A Contract liabilities 1,012.3A 911.7A Current portion of long-term debt340.3A 308.9A Derivative
financial liabilities38.6A 28.8A Total current liabilitiesA $2,522.0A $2,358.4A ProvisionsA 13.7A 14.0A Long-term
debt3,315.1A 2,765.4A Royalty obligations67.3A 74.4A Employee benefits obligationsA 130.4A 98.7A Deferred tax
liabilitiesA 42.3A 36.6A Derivative financial liabilities20.5A 2.9A Other non-current liabilitiesA 213.2A 181.1A Total
liabilitiesA $6,324.5A $5,531.5A EquityA Share capital$2,306.8A $2,252.9A Contributed

surplusA 69.0A 55.4A Accumulated other comprehensive incomeA 324.9A 154.0A Retained

earningsA 1,972.8A 1,762.6A Equity attributable to equity holders of the CompanyA $4,673.5A $4,224.9A Non-
controlling interestsA 85.4A 77.7A Total equityA $4,758.9A $4,302.6A Total liabilities and

equityA $11,083.4A $9,834.1A The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Consolidated Interim Financial
Statements.32 IA CAE Third Quarter Report 2025Consolidated Interim Financial StatementsConsolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity(Unaudited)A Attributable to equity holders of the CompanyA A Nine months ended December 31,
2024A Common sharesA Accumulated otherA A A (amounts in millions of Canadian dollars, A Number of Stated
Contributedcomprehensive Retained A Non-controlling Total except number of
shares)NotessharesvaluesurplusincomeearningsTotalinterestsequityBalances as at MarchA 31,

2024A 318,312,233A $2,252.9A $55.4A $154.0A $1,762.6A $4,224.9A $77.7A $4,302.6A Net

incomeA a€”A $a€”A $4€”A $a€”A $269.4A $269.4A $7.4A $276.8A Other comprehensive income

(loss)a€”A a€”A a€”A 170.9A (44.0)126.9A 3.2A 130.1A Total comprehensive

incomeA a€”A $4€”A $4€”A $170.9A $225.4A $396.3A $10.6A $406.9A Exercise of stock

optionsA 2,174,482A 58.8A (8.6)a€”A a€”A 50.2A 4€”A 50.2A Settlement of equity-settled

awards43,557A 1.2A (1.2)a€”A a€”A 4€”A a€”A 4€”A Repurchase and cancellation of common shares10A (856,230)
(6.1)a€”A 4€”A (15.2)(21.3)a€”A (21.3)Equity-settled share-based payments

expenseda€”A 4€”A 23.4A a€”A a€”A 23.4A a€”A 23.4A Transactions with non-controlling

interestsa€”A a€”A 4€”A 4€”A 4€”A 4€”A (2.9)(2.9)Balances as at DecemberA 31, o

2024A 319,674,042A $2,306.8A $69.0A $324.9A $1,972.8A $4,673.5A $85.4A $4,758.9A A Attributable to equity
holders of the CompanyA A Nine months ended December 31, 2023A Common sharesA Accumulated

otherA A A (amounts in millions of Canadian dollars, A Number of StatedContributedcomprehensive Retained A Non-
controllingTotal except number of shares)sharesA valuesurplusincomeearningsTotalinterestsequityBalances as at
MarchA 31, 2023A 317,906,290A $2,243.6A $42.1A $167.2A $2,054.8A $4,507.7A $81.2A $4,588.9A Net

incomeA a€”A $a€”A $a€”A $a€”A $180.2A $180.2A $7.8A $188.0A Other comprehensive lossa€”A a€”A a€”A (48.8)
(16.5)(65.3)(1.0)(66.3)Total comprehensive (loss)



incomeA a€”A $a€”A $4€”A $(48.8)$163.7A $114.9A $6.8A $121.7A Exercise of stock

optionsA 396,018A 9.0A (1.4)a€”A a4€”A 7.6A 4€”A 7.6A Equity-settled share-based payments

expenseda€”A 4€”A 18.6A a€”A a€”A 18.6A a€”A 18.6A Transactions with non-controlling

interestsa€”A a€”A a€”A a€”A 4€”A a€”A (8.5)(8.5)Balances as at DecemberA 31,

2023A 318,302,308A $2,252.6A $59.3A $118.4A $2,218.5A $4,648.8A $79.5A $4,728.3A The accompanying notes form
an integral part of these Consolidated Interim Financial Statements.CAE Third Quarter Report 2025 I 33 Consolidated
Interim Financial StatementsConsolidated Statement of Cash Flows(Unaudited)Ning months ended December

31A (amounts in millions of Canadian dollars)Notes202420230Operating activitiesA A Net

incomeA $276.8A $188.0A Adjustments for:A A Depreciation and amortization4A 304.2A 278.6A Share of after-tax profit
of equity accounted investeesA (63.2)(47.6)Deferred income taxes9.4A (39.8)Investment tax creditsA (8.9)(9.2)Equity-
settled share-based payments expense23.4A 18.6A Defined benefit pension plansA 25.8A 4.5A Other non-current
liabilitiesA (4.8)(7.3)Derivative financial assets and liabilities 4€“ netA (37.0)(17.5)Gain on remeasurement of previously
held equity interest7A (72.6)4€”A OtherA 12.5A 23.8A Changes in non-cash working capitall 1A 108.2A (40.4)Net cash
provided by operating activitiesA $573.8A $351.7A Investing activitiesA A Business combinations, net of cash
acquired2A $(308.0)$4€”A Property, plant and equipment expend1tures4A (247.2)(238.1)Proceeds from disposal of
property, plant and equipment3.3A 3.7A Intangible assets expenditures4A (70.3)(105. 8)Net payments to equity
accounted investees(5.0)(40.5)Dividends received from equity accounted investees28. 7A 30.3A OtherA (5.2)(7.2)Net
cash used in investing activitiesA $(603.7)$(357.6)Financing activitiesA A Net proceeds from (repayment of) borrowing
under revolving credit facilities$97.7A $(407.8)Proceeds from long-term debt8A 314.7A 426.1A Repayment of long-term
debt(237.8)A(41.1A)Repayment of lease liabilities(42.8)(57.0)Net procegds from thg issuance of common

shares50.2A 7.6A Repurchase and cancellation of common shares10A (21.3)a€”A OtherA (0.9)a€”A Net cash provided
by (used in) financing activitiesA $159.8A $(72.2)Effect of foreign currency exchange differences on cash and cash
equivalentsA $12.5A $(15.0)Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalentsA $142.4A $(93.1)Cash and cash
equivalents, beginning of periodA 160.1A 217.6A Cash and cash equivalents, end of periodA $302.5A $124.5A The
accompanying notes form an integral part of these Consolidated Interim Financial Statements.34 IA CAE Third Quarter
Report 2025Notes to the Consolidated Interim Financial StatementsNotes to the Consolidated Interim Financial
Statements(Unaudited)(Unless otherwise stated, all tabular amounts are in millions of Canadian dollars)A The
consolidated interim financial statements were authorized for issue by the board of directors on FebruaryA 13,

2025.A NOTE 1 4€“ NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIESNature of
operationsCAE equips people in critical roles with the expertise and solutions to create a safer world. As a technology
company, CAE digitalizes the physical world, deploying software-based simulation training and critical operations
support solutions.CAE Inc. and its subsidiariesa€™ (CAE or the Company) operations are managed through two
segments:A (i)Civil Aviation 4€“ Provides comprehensive training solutions for flight, cabin, maintenance and ground
personnel in commercial, business and helicopter aviation, a complete range of flight simulation training devices, ab
initio pilot training and crew sourcing services, as well as aircraft flight operations solutions; (ii)Defense and Security
a€“ A global training and simulation provider delivering scalable, platform-independent solutions that enable and
enhance force readiness and security.CAE Inc. is incorporated and domiciled in Canada with its registered and main
office located at 8585 CA "te-de-Liesse, Saint-Laurent, QuA©bec, Canada, HAT 1G6. CAE common shares are traded on
the Toronto Stock Exchange (TSX) and on the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE).A Seasonality and cyclicality of the
businessThe Companya€™s business operating segments are affected in varying degrees by market cyclicality and/or
seasonality. As such, operating performance over a given interim period should not necessarily be considered indicative
of full fiscal year performance.A The Companya€™s business, revenues and cash flows are affected by certain seasonal
trends. In the Civil Aviation segment, the level of training delivered is driven by the availability of pilots to train, which
tends to be lower in the second quarter as pilots are flying more and training less, thus, driving lower revenues. In the
Defense and Security segment, revenue and cash collection is not as consistent across quarters throughout the year as
contract awards and availability of funding are influenced by customersa€™ budget cycles. Basis of preparationThe
material accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated interim financial statements are consistent
with those disclosed in Note 1 of the Companya€™s consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31,
2024. These policies have been consistently applied to all periods presented. These condensed consolidated interim
financial statements should be read in conjunction with the Companya€™s most recent annual consolidated financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2024.The consolidated interim financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Part I of the CPA Canada HandbookA &4€‘A Accounting, IFRS Accounting Standards (IFRS), as issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) applicable to the preparation of interim financial statements,
IAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting. CAE Inc.a€™s consolidated financial statements are presented in Canadian dollars,
which is also the parent companya€™ s functional currency.New and amended standards adopted by the
CompanyAmendments to IAS 1 - Presentation of Financial StatementsIn January 2020, IASB issued a narrow-scope
amendment to IAS 1 4€“ Presentation of Financial Statements, which clarifies that the classification of liabilities as
current or non-current is based on rights that are in existence at the end of the reporting period. Classification is
unaffected by expectations about whether an entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of a liability or events after
the reporting date. The amendment also clarifies what IAS 1 means when it refers to the a€"settlementa€™ of a
liability. In October 2022, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 1 4€“ Presentation of Financial Statements, which
specify that for long-term debt with covenants to be complied with after the reporting date, such covenants do not
affect the classification of debt as current or nona€‘current at the reporting date, but do require disclosures in the
notes to the financial statements. Amendments to IFRS 16 a€“ LeasesIn September 2022, IASB issued amendments to
IFRS 16 a€“ Leases, which requires a seller-lessee to subsequently measure lease liabilities arising from a leaseback in
a way that it does not recognize any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right of use it retains. The new
requirements do not prevent a seller-lessee from recognizing in profit or loss any gain or loss relating to the partial or
full termination of a lease. CAE Third Quarter Report 2025 I 35 Notes to the Consolidated Interim Financial
StatementsAmendments to IAS 7 a€“ Statement of Cash Flows, and IFRS 7 a€“ Financial Instruments: disclosuresin
May 2023, IASB issued amendments to IAS 7 a€“ Statement of Cash Flows and IFRS 7 4€“ Financial Instruments:
disclosure, which introduces disclosure requirements to enhance the transparency of supplier finance arrangements
and their effects on an entitya€™s liabilities, cash flows and exposure to liquidity risk. The amendments provide a
transition relief whereby an entity is not required to provide the disclosures, otherwise required by the amendments,
for any interim period in the year of initial application of the amendments. The Company has elected to apply the
transition relief to its consolidated interim financial statements. These amendments to accounting standards were



applied for the first time on AprilA 1,A 2024, but did not have a significant impact on the consolidated interim financial
statements of the Company.Use of judgements, estimates and assumptionsThe preparation of the consolidated interim
financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of accounting policies, the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures at the date of the consolidated
interim financial statements, as well as the reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the period reported. Actual
results could differ from those estimates. Changes will be reported in the period in which they are identified. In
preparing these consolidated interim financial statements, the significant judgements made by management in applying
the Companya€™ s accounting policies and the key sources of estimation uncertainty were the same as those that
applied to the consolidated financial statements of the year ended March 31, 2024.NOTE 2 a€“ BUSINESS
COMBINATIONS SIMCOM Aviation TrainingOn November 5, 2024, the Company increased its ownership stake in its
existing SIMCOM Aviation Training (SIMCOM) joint venture by purchasing an additional interest from Volo Sicuro for a
cash consideration of $322.8 million (US$232.3 million), subject to customary adjustments.As a result, the Company
obtained control over SIMCOMa€™ s four training centres located in the U.S. providing pilot training across multiple
business aviation aircraft platforms. Additionally, CAE and SIMCOM have extended their current exclusive business
aviation training services agreement with Flexjet, LLC, a related party of Volo Sicuro, and its affiliates by five years,
bringing the remaining exclusivity period to 15 years.Prior to acquiring control, the Company's 50% ownership in
SIMCOM was accounted for using the equity method. The change in control provided for the remeasurement of the
previously held equity interest in SIMCOM to its fair value. The fair value of the Company's previously held equity
interest in SIMCOM was determined by applying a non-controlling discount to the consideration paid on the acquisition
date and was valued at $230.6 million. As a result, the Company recorded a net remeasurement gain of $72.6A million
(Note 7).As at DecemberA 31, 2024, the preliminary determination of the fair value of the net assets acquired and
liabilities assumed arising from the SIMCOM acquisition are as follows:SIMCOMCurrent assets, excluding cash on
hand$13.2Current liabilities(19.7)Property, plant and equipment136.5Right-of-use assets127.6Intangible
assetsb04.9Deferred tax(29.4)Long-term debt, including current portion(158.5)Non-current liabilities(13.6)Fair value of
net assets acquired, excluding cash acquired$561.0Cash acquired14.8Total purchase consideration$575.8Settlement of
pre-existing balances with SIMCOM(22.4)Fair value of the Company's previously held equity interest in
SIMCOM(230.6)Total cash consideration paid on acquisition date$322.8The preliminary fair value of the acquired
intangible assets amounts to $504.9 million and consists of goodwill of $380.8 million (nona€‘deductible for tax
purposes), customer relationships of $123.2 million and other intangibles of $0.9 million. The goodwill arising from this
acquisition is attributable to the expansion of CAE's customer installed base of business aviation flight simulators,
market capacity and expected synergies from combining operations.The net assets acquired, including intangible
assets, of SIMCOM are included in the Civil Aviation segment.The purchase price allocation is preliminary as at
DecemberA 31, 2024.36 IA CAE Third Quarter Report 2025Notes to the Consolidated Interim Financial
StatementsNOTE 3 4€“ DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2024, the Company closed
the sale of its Healthcare business to Madison Industries. At the time of issuance of the consolidated interim financial
statements, the Company is engaged in a dispute with Madison Industries, which is claiming up to approximately $60
million in final price adjustments. For additional information, refer to Note 12.The net (loss) income and other
comprehensive loss from discontinued operations are as follows:Three months endedNine months endedDecember
31December 312024202320242023Revenue$a€”A $36.0A $4€”A $116.9A Expensesa€”A 34.3A 4€”A 110.5A Operating
Income$a€”A $1.7A $a€”A $6.4A Transaction costsa€”A 2.2A a€”A 2.2A Finance expensea€”A 1.1A a€”A 3.0A (Loss)
earnings before income taxes$a€”A $(1.6)$4€”A $1.2A Income tax expensea€”A 0.3A 4€”A 0.4A Net (loss) income from
discontinued operations$é€"A $(1.9)$3€”A $0.8A Three months endedNine months endedDecember 31December
312024202320242023Foreign currency exchange differences on translation of foreign

operations$a€”A $(3.2)$4€”A $(1.7)Other comprehensive loss from discontinued operations$a€”A $(3.2)$4€”A $(1.7)No
amount of net (loss) income and other comprehensive loss from discontinued operations are attributable to

nona€ ‘controlling interest.The net cash flows from discontinued operations are as follows: Nine months
endedDecember 31202420230perating activities$4€”A $6.0A Investing activitiesad€”A (12.3)Financing

activitiesa€”A (1.1)Net cash flows used in discontinued operations$a€”A $(7.4)CAE Third Quarter Report 2025 I 37
Notes to the Consolidated Interim Financial StatementsNOTE 4 4€“ OPERATING SEGMENTS AND GEOGRAPHIC
INFORMATIONThe Company elected to organize its operating segments principally on the basis of its customer
markets. The Company manages its operations through its two segments: Civil Aviation and Defense and Security.
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker.The Company has decided to disaggregate revenue from contracts with customers by segment, by
products and services and by geographic regions as the Company believes it best depicts how the nature, amount,
timing and uncertainty of its revenue and cash flows are affected by economic factors.Results by segmentThe
profitability measure employed by the Company for making decisions about allocating resources to segments and
assessing segment performance is adjusted segment operating income. Adjusted segment operating income is
calculated by taking operating income and adjusting for restructuring, integration and acquisition costs, and
impairments and other gains and losses arising from significant strategic transactions or specific events, which gives an
indication of the profitability of each segment because it does not include the impact of items not specifically related to
the segmenta€™s performance. The accounting principles used to prepare the information by operating segments are
the same as those used to prepare the Companya€™s consolidated financial statements. The method used for the
allocation of assets jointly used by operating segments and costs and liabilities jointly incurred (mostly corporate costs)
between operating segments is based on the level of utilization when determinable and measurable, otherwise the
allocation is based on a proportion of each segmenta€™s cost of sales and revenue.A DefenseA A A Civil Aviationand
SecurityTotalThree months ended December 31202420232024202320242023External

revenue$752.6A $622.1A $470.8A $472.4A $1,223.4A $1,094.5A Depreciation and

amortization80.1A 70.7A 26.2A 23.6A 106.3A 94.3A Share of after-tax profit of equity accounted

investees13.8A 13.9A 5.4A 2.8A 19.2A 16.7A Operating income 223.4A 101.0A 39.2A 20.6A 262.6A 121.6A Adjusted
segment operating income150.8A 124.2A 39.2A 20.9A 190.0A 145.1A DefenseCivil Aviationand SecurityTotalNine
months ended December 31202420232024202320242023External

revenue$1,980.9A $1,735.0A $1,451.6A $1,421.5A $3,432.5A $3,156.5A Depreciation and

amortization228.1A 202.1A 76.1A 70.4A 304.2A 272.5A Share of after-tax profit of equity accounted

investees47.9A 38.8A 15.3A 8.8A 63.2A 47.6A Operating income407.9A 295.0A 81.4A 52.6A 489.3A 347.6A Adjusted
segment operating income373.1A 357.5A 100.1A 66.5A 473.2A 424.0A Reconciliation of adjusted segment operating



income is as follows:DefenseA A Civil Aviationand SecurityTotalThree months ended December
312024202320242023202420230perating income$223.4A $101.0A $39.2A $20.6A $262.6A $121.6A Restructuring,
integration and acquisition costs (Note 6)a€”A 23.2A 4€”A 0.3A 4€”A 23.5A Gain on fair value remeasurement of
SIMCOM (Note 7)(72.6)a€”A a€”A a€”A (72.6)a€”A Adjusted segment operating income

$150.8A $124.2A $39.2A $20.9A $190.0A $145.1A DefenseCivil Aviationand SecurityTotalNine months ended December
312024202320242023202420230perating income$407.9A $295.0A $81.4A $52.6A $489.3A $347.6A Restructuring,
integration and acquisition costs (Note 6)37.8A 62.5A 18.7A 13.9A 56.5A 76.4A Gain on fair value remeasurement of
SIMCOM (Note 7)(72.6)a€”A a€”A 4€”A (72.6)a€”A Adjusted segment operating

income$373.1A $357.5A $100.1A $66.5A $473.2A $424.0A 38 IA CAE Third Quarter Report 2025Notes to the
Consolidated Interim Financial StatementsCapital expenditures by segment, which consist of property, plant and
equipment expenditures and intangible assets expenditures (excluding those acquired in business combinations), are as
follows:Three months endedDecember 31Nine months endedDecember 312024202320242023Civil

Aviation$71.2A $87.7A $219.8A $244.2A Defense and Security43.7A 24.597.787.4Discontinued operations (Note
3)a€”A 6.94€”A 12.3Total capital expenditures$114.9A $119.1A $317.5A $343.9A Assets and liabilities employed by
segmentThe Company uses assets employed and liabilities employed to assess resources allocated to each segment.
Assets employed include accounts receivable, contract assets, inventories, prepayments, property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, intangible assets, investment in equity accounted investees, derivative financial assets and other
non-current assets. Liabilities employed include accounts payable and accrued liabilities, provisions, contract liabilities,
derivative financial liabilities and other non-current liabilities.Assets and liabilities employed by segment are reconciled
to total assets and liabilities as follows:A December 31March 31A A A 20242024Assets employed A A Civil
Aviation$7,131.8A $6,131.8A Defense and Security2,962.0A 2,869.3A Assets not included in assets employed by
segment989.6A 833.0A Total assets $11,083.4A $9,834.1A Liabilities employed A A Civil

Aviation$1,357.5A $1,260.1A Defense and Security920.2A 828.1A Liabilities not included in liabilities employed by
segment4,046.8A 3,443.3A Total liabilities $6,324.5A $5,531.5A Products and services informationThe Company's
revenue from external customers for its products and services are as follows:A Three months endedDecember 31Nine
months endedDecember 312024202320242023Products$485.6A $382.3$1,357.8A $1,075.6A Training, software and
services737.8A 712.2A 2,074.7A 2,080.9A Total external revenue$1,223.4A $1,094.5A $3,432.5A $3,156.5A CAE Third
Quarter Report 2025 I 39 Notes to the Consolidated Interim Financial StatementsGeographic informationThe Company
markets its products and services globally. Revenues are attributed to geographical regions based on the location of
customers. Non-current assets other than financial instruments, deferred tax assets and employee benefits assets are
attributed to geographical regions based on the location of the assets, excluding goodwill. Goodwill is presented by
geographical regions based on the Companya€™s allocation of the related purchase price. Three months
endedDecember 31Nine months endedDecember 312024202320242023External

revenueA A A A Canada$145.5A $110.5A $357.0A $321.2A United States547.8A 511.4A 1,621.6A 1,514.2A United
Kingdom67.9A 66.5A 207.4A 191.9A Rest of

Americas32.0A 26.0A 106.6A 72.4A Europe182.3A 173.6A 484.9A 493.2A Asia214.9A 164.8A 542.6A 445.8A Oceania
and Africa 33.0A 41.7A 112.4A 117.8A $1,223.4A $1,094.5A $3,432.5A $3,156.5A December 31March 3120242024 Non-
current assets other than financial instruments, deferred tax assets and employee benefits

assetsA A A Canada$1,544.0A $1,527.7A United States4,563.8A 3,623.5A United Kingdom369.8A 360.5A Rest of
Americas194.1A 201.9A Europel,054.7A 985.5A Asia587.0A 532.0A Oceania and

Africal87.9A 108.9A $8,501.3A $7,340.0A NOTE 5 4€“ OTHER (GAINS) AND LOSSES Three months endedDecember
31Nine months endedDecember 312024202320242023Net loss (gain) on foreign currency exchange

differences$0.5A $(4.8)$(1.5)$(3.3)Settlement gain on annuity purchase

transactiona€”A 4€”A 4€”A (5.2)Other(0.6)a€”A (2.2)0.1A Other (gains) and losses$(0.1)$(4.8)$(3.7)$(8.4)40 IA CAE
Third Quarter Report 2025Notes to the Consolidated Interim Financial StatementsNOTE 6 a€“ RESTRUCTURING,
INTEGRATION AND ACQUISITION COSTSThree months endedDecember 31Nine months endedDecember
312024202320242023Integration and acquisition costs$a€”A $23.0A $11.5A $64.9A Severances and other employee
related costsa€”A 0.5A 33.9A 11.5A Impairment of non-financial assets a€“ neta€”A a€”A 5.2A 4€”A Other

costsa€”A 4€”A 5.9A 4€”A Total restructuring, integration and acquisition costs$a€”A $23.5A $56.5A $76.4A During the
fourth quarter of fiscal 2024, the Company announced that it would streamline its operating model and portfolio,
optimize its cost structure and create efficiencies. This restructuring program was completed in the second quarter of
fiscal 2025. For the nine months ended DecemberA 31, 2024, costs related to this restructuring program totalled $40.6
million and included $29.4 million of severances and other employee related costs and $5.2 million of impairment of
non-financial assets. Impairment of non-financial assets primarily included the impairment of property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets and righta€‘ofa€ ‘use assets related to the termination of certain product offerings within
the Civil Aviation segment.In the second quarter of fiscal 2025, the integration activities associated with the fiscal 2022
acquisition of Sabre's AirCentre airline operations portfolio (AirCentre) were completed. For the three and nine months
ended DecemberA 31, 2024, restructuring, integration and acquisition costs associated with AirCentre amounted to nil
and $15.9 million (2023A 4€‘A $22.6 million and $61.1 million), respectively.NOTE 7 a€“ GAIN ON REMEASUREMENT
OF PREVIOUSLY HELD EQUITY INTERESTGain on fair value remeasurement of SIMCOMOn November 5, 2024, the
Company increased its ownership stake in its existing SIMCOM joint venture, obtaining control of the entity (Note 2).
Prior to acquiring control, the Company's 50% ownership in SIMCOM was accounted for using the equity method. The
change in control provided for the remeasurement of the previously held equity interest in SIMCOM to its fair value
with any difference compared to the carrying value to be recognized as a gain or loss in the income statement, as well
as the derecognition of a portion of Civil Aviation's goodwill, based on the relative fair value of the previously held
equity interest in SIMCOM compared to the cash generating unit included in the Civil Aviation segment. As a result, the
Company recorded a net remeasurement gain of $72.6 million, including the derecognition of goodwill and associated
cumulative foreign exchange differences of $29.4 million and $7.7 million, respectively, and other costs of $5.3
million.NOTE 8 a€“ DEBT FACILITIES AND FINANCE EXPENSE a€“ NETThree months endedDecember 31Nine
months endedDecember 312024202320242023Finance expense:Long-term debt (other than lease

liabilities)$40.3A $41.3A $116.1A $122.2A Lease liabilities11.2A 7.2A 30.1A 18.9A Royalty

obligations1.5A 1.8A 4.4A 5.2A Employee benefits

obligations0.2A 0.5A 0.5A 1.3A Other9.5A 7.8A 27.0A 22.9A Borrowing costs capitalized(0.9)(2.0)(3.9)(5.3)Finance
expense $61.8A $56.6A $174.2A $165.2A Finance income:Loans and investment in finance
leases$(3.5)$(2.7)$(10.4)$(7.9)Other(1.7)(1.5)(4.8)(4.7)Finance income $(5.2)$(4.2)$(15.2)$(12.6)Finance expense a€”



net $56.6A $52.4A $159.0A $152.6A Revolving credit facility extensionIn September 2024, the Company extended the
maturity date of its US$1.0 billion unsecured revolving credit facility until SeptemberA 2028.Term loanIn December
2024, the Company entered into an unsecured term loan agreement with a syndicated group of banks amounting to
US$200.0 million maturing in JuneA 2026, bearing interest at a variable rate. Unsecured senior notesIn December
2024, the Company repaid unsecured senior notes of US$127.0 million.CAE Third Quarter Report 2025 I 41 Notes to
the Consolidated Interim Financial StatementsNOTE 9 a€“ GLOBAL MINIMUM TAX (PILLAR TWO)As at

DecemberA 31, 2024, various countries where the Company operates have enacted the global minimum top-up income
tax under Pillar Two tax legislation into domestic tax legislation. The top-up income tax relates to the Companya€™s
operations in the United Arab Emirates and Hungary where the statutory income tax rates are below the 15%
determined by the Pillar Two rules. For the three and nine months ended DecemberA 31, 2024, the Company
recognized a current income tax expense related to the Pillar Two tax of $0.7A million and $2.0 million, respectively.
The Company has applied a temporary mandatory exception to recognize and disclose information about deferred
income tax assets and liabilities arising from jurisdictions implementing the global minimum tax rules.NOTE 10 a€“
SHARE CAPITAL AND EARNINGS PER SHARE Share capitalRepurchase and cancellation of common sharesOn May 27,
2024, the Company received regulatory approval for a normal course issuer bid program (NCIB) to purchase, for
cancellation, up to 15,932,187 of its common shares. The NCIB began on May 30, 2024 and will end on May 29, 2025 or
on such earlier date when the Company completes its purchases or elects to terminate the NCIB. These purchases may
be made through the facilities of the TSX or the NYSE, or in such other manner as may be permitted under applicable
stock exchange rules and securities laws, at the prevailing market price at the time of acquisition, plus brokerage fees.
All common shares purchased pursuant to the NCIB will be cancelled.During the three months ended December 31,
2024, no common shares were repurchased under the NCIB. During the nine months ended December 31, 2024, the
Company repurchased and cancelled a total of 856,230 common shares under the NCIB, at a weighted average price of
$24.85 per common share, for a total consideration of $21.3 million.Earnings per share computationThe denominators
for the basic and diluted earnings per share computations are as follows:Three months endedDecember 31Nine months
endedDecember 312024202320242023Weighted average number of common shares

outstanding319,021,553A 318,280,114A 318,776,416A 318,154,210A Effect of dilutive stock options and other equity-
settled share-based payments793,907A 803,129A 463,843A 882,082A Weighted average number of common shares
outstanding for diluted earnings per share calculation319,815,460A 319,083,243A 319,240,259A 319,036,292A For the
three months ended December 31, 2024, stock options to acquire 1,845,100 common shares (2023 4€“ 2,068,885) have
been excluded from the above calculation since their inclusion would have had an anti-dilutive effect. For the nine
months ended DecemberA 31, 2024, stock options to acquire 2,841,731 common shares (2023 4€“ 2,056,129) have been
excluded from the above calculation since their inclusion would have had an anti-dilutive effect. NOTE 11 a€“
SUPPLEMENTARY CASH FLOWS INFORMATIONChanges in non-cash working capital are as follows:Nine months
endedDecember 3120242023Accounts receivable$122.2A $21.2A Contract

assets32.4A 38.6A Inventories2.6A (92.5)Prepayments(23.8)(15.0)Income taxes (63.6)(12.3)Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities(52.8)(2.3)Provisions(6.3)(6;7)Contract liabilitie597.5A 28.6A $108.2A $(40.4)Supplementa1
information:Nine months endedDecember 31A 20242023Interest paidA $150.1A $139.5A Interest

receivedA 15.3A 12.4A Income taxes paidA 82.9A 59.1A 42 IA CAE Third Quarter Report 2025Notes to the Consolidated
Interim Financial StatementsNOTE 12 4€“ CONTINGENCIESDispute relating to final price adjustments for the sale of
CAEa€™s Healthcare businessDuring the fourth quarter of fiscal 2024, the Company closed the sale of its Healthcare
business to Madison Industries. The total consideration is subject to post-closing price adjustments, including on
account of working capital. At the time of issuance of the consolidated interim financial statements, the Company is
engaged in a dispute with Madison Industries, which is claiming up to approximately $60 million in final price
adjustments. While there can be no assurance whether any amount will be payable by the Company as a result of the
dispute, no amount has been recognized in the Companya€™s financial statements for any potential losses arising from
this dispute as at DecemberA 31, 2024, as the Company believes that there are strong grounds for defence and will
vigorously defend its position. Class action proceedingOn July 16, 2024, the Company was served with an Application
for authorization to bring an action pursuant to Section 225.4 of the Securities Act (QuA©bec) and application for
authorization to institute a class action before the Superior Court of QuA®©bec in the district of MontrA©al against the
Company and certain of the Companya€™s officers. The application and action are sought on behalf of purchasers of
the Company's common shares, and are based upon allegations that the defendants made false and/or misleading
statements to the public and seek unspecified damages. The Company has strong legal defences to the proceeding and
intends to defend the case vigorously. Based on the preliminary nature of the proceeding and the inherent uncertainty
of litigation, it is not possible to predict the final outcome or the timing of the proceeding or to determine the amount of
any potential losses resulting therefrom, if any. As such, no amounts have been provisioned in the Companya€™s
financial statements with respect to the proceeding.NOTE 13 4€“ FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTSThe fair
value of a financial instrument is determined by reference to the available market information at the reporting date.
When no active market exists for a financial instrument, the Company determines the fair value of that instrument
based on valuation methodologies as discussed below. In determining assumptions required under a valuation model,
the Company primarily uses external, readily observable market data inputs. Assumptions or inputs that are not based
on observable market data incorporate the Companya€™ s best estimates of market participant assumptions.
Counterparty credit risk and the Companya€™s own credit risk are taken into account in estimating the fair value of
financial assets and financial liabilities.A The following assumptions and valuation methodologies have been used to
measure the fair value of financial instruments:(i)The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and
accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximate their carrying values due to their short-term maturities;(ii)The fair
value of derivative instruments, which include forward contracts, swap agreements and embedded derivatives
accounted for separately and is calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows using an appropriate
interest rate yield curve and forward foreign exchange rate. Assumptions are based on market conditions prevailing at
each reporting date. The fair value of derivative instruments reflect the estimated amounts that the Company would
receive or pay to settle the contracts at the reporting date;(iii)The fair value of the equity investments, which does not
have a readily available market value, is estimated using a discounted cash flow model, which includes some
assumptions that are not based on observable market prices or rates;(iv)The fair value of non-current receivables is
estimated based on discounted cash flows using current interest rates for instruments with similar risks and remaining
maturities;(v)The fair value of long-term debts, royalties obligations and other non-current liabilities are estimated
based on discounted cash flows using current interest rates for instruments with similar risks and remaining



maturities.Fair value hierarchyThe fair value hierarchy reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the
measurements and has the following levels:A Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities;A Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices in markets that are not active) or indirectly (i.e. quoted prices for similar assets or
liabilities);A Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).Each type of fair value is categorized based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement in its entirety.CAE Third Quarter Report 2025 I 43 Notes to the Consolidated Interim Financial
StatementsThe carrying values and fair values of financial instruments, by category, are as follows:December 31March
3120242024 LevelCarrying valueFair valueCarrying valueFair valueFinancial assets (liabilities) measured at FVTPLCash
and cash equivalentsLevel 1$302.5A $302.5A $160.1A $160.1A Equity swap agreementsLevel 215.3A 15.3A (15.8)
(15.8)Forward foreign currency contractsLevel 2(3.0)(3.0)(0.6)(0.6)Derivative assets (liabilities) designated in a hedge
relationshipForeign currency and interest rate swap agreementsLevel 2(12.0)(12.0)4.8A 4.8A Forward foreign currency
contractsLevel 2(40.2)(40.2)(8.7)(8.7)Financial assets (liabilities) measured at amortized costAccounts
receivable(1)Level 2492.9A 492.9A 570.8A 570.8A Investment in finance leasesLevel
2146.4A 137.6A 147.9A 140.3A Other non-current assets(2)Level 254.1A 54.1A 47.0A 47.0A Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities(3)Level 2(856.4)(856.4)(775.8)(775.8)Total long-term debt(4)Level 2(2,886.5)(2,892.2)(2,529.9)
(2,524.4)0ther non-current liabilities(5)Level 2(85.3)(75.2)(87.1)(78.0)Financial assets measured at FVOCIEquity
investmentsLevel 31.4A 1.4A 1.4A 1.4A $(2,870.8)$(2,875.2)$(2,485.9)$(2,478.9)(1) Includes trade receivables, accrued
receivables and certain other receivables.(2) Includes non-current receivables and certain other non-current assets.(3)
Includes trade accounts payable, accrued liabilities, interest payable and current royalty obligations.(4) Excludes lease
liabilities. The carrying value of long-term debt excludes transaction costs.(5) Includes non-current royalty obligations
and other non-current liabilities.During the nine months ended December 31, 2024, there were no significant changes
in level 3 financial instruments.44 IA CAE Third Quarter Report 2025 GRAPHIC 4 cae rgbxbrightxbluea.jpg begin 644
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